
 
 

REGULAR MEETING  
of the  

SANTA BARBARA METROPOLITAN TRANSIT DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
a Public Agency 

Tuesday, September 1, 2020 
8:30 AM  

VIA TELECONFERENCE 
 

IMPORTANT NOTICE REGARDING THIS BOARD MEETING: 
 

This virtual meeting is being conducted utilizing teleconferencing and electronic means pursuant to 
State of California Executive Order N-29-20 issued by Governor Gavin Newsom on March 17, 2020, 
regarding the COVID-19 pandemic. The public may only view a livestream of the meeting online at: 

http://tinyurl.com/sbmtdyoutube 
 

Public Participation 
 

To make a general public comment or to comment on a specific agenda item, the following 
methods are available: Email, Phone, and Zoom webinar. 
All comments will be limited to 3 minutes per speaker. 

 
1. Email:  

• Submit public comment to clerk@sbmtd.gov before 12 p.m. on the Monday prior to the 
Board meeting for advance distribution to the Board of Directors. 

• Public comment emails submitted to clerk@sbmtd.gov during the meeting will be 
recognized if the email is received prior to or during the item to be addressed. 

• In ALL emailed Public Comments, please include:  
(A) The agenda item(s) to be addressed  
(B) If you would like your comment read into the record  
(C) Public Comment text 
 

2. Phone: Call the Zoom webinar line 10 minutes prior to the 8:30 a.m. meeting start time: 
• Toll-Free Dial-in: (669) 900-6833.  

• When prompted, enter Meeting ID 950 7595 5337 and then #.  
• When prompted for a password, dial 956284 and then #.  
• When the item you wish to address is announced, dial *9 to request to comment.  

 
Please mute your phone until called to speak. If you do not have a mute button, you may mute 
by dialing *6. You can unmute by pressing the same keys (*6). When the chair calls for public 
comment, the clerk will announce you and will unmute your microphone. 

 
3. Zoom webinar & computer audio: View the webinar at the following link at 8:30 a.m.: 
  https://zoom.us/j/95075955337?pwd=Z0t6UUU1SnE4akdCL3puRzlZR09vUT09 
 

To give public comment via the Zoom webinar, click the “Raise Hand” button only when the 
item you wish to speak on has begun. When the chair calls for public comment, the clerk will 
announce you and will unmute your microphone. The public will not be able to share their video 
or screen.   

http://tinyurl.com/sbmtdyoutube
mailto:clerk@sbmtd.gov
mailto:clerk@sbmtd.gov
https://zoom.us/j/95075955337?pwd=Z0t6UUU1SnE4akdCL3puRzlZR09vUT09


BOARD OF DIRECTORS AGENDA 
 

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT:  If you need special assistance to participate in this 
meeting, please contact the MTD Administrative Office at 805.963.3364 at least 48 hours in 
advance of the meeting to allow time for MTD to attempt a reasonable accommodation. 

BOARD MEMBERS WILL JOIN VIA TELECONFERENCE 
 

ITEMS TO BE CONSIDERED: 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. ROLL CALL OF THE BOARD MEMBERS 

 Dave Davis (Chair), David Tabor (Vice Chair), Bill Shelor (Secretary), Olivia Rodriguez 
(Director), Dick Weinberg (Director), Chuck McQuary (Director), Paula Perotte (Director). 

 
3. REPORT REGARDING POSTING OF AGENDA 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
4. APPROVAL OF PRIOR MINUTES - (ACTION MAY BE TAKEN) 

The Board of Directors will be asked to approve the draft minutes for the meeting of August 
4, 2020.   
 

5. CASH REPORT - (ACTION MAY BE TAKEN) 
The Board of Directors will be asked to review and approve the Cash Report from the 
following dates: July 11, 2020 through August 21, 2020. 
 

THIS CONCLUDES THE CONSENT CALENDAR 
  
6. PUBLIC COMMENT 

Members of the public may address the Board of Directors on items within the jurisdiction 
of the Board that are not scheduled for public hearing.  The time allotted per speaker will 
be at the discretion of the Board Chair.  If you wish to address the Board under this item 
number, see the above instructions on giving remote public comment.  Additional public 
comment will be allowed during each agenda item, including closed session items.  

 
7.  PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AGENCY SAFETY PLAN - (ATTACHMENT - 

INFORMATIONAL) 
Staff will recommend the Board receive a presentation update on MTD’s Agency Safety 
Plan (ASP) in compliance with the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Public 
Transportation Agency Safety Plan (PTASP) Rule 49 C.F.R. Part 673. 

 
8.  DRIVER BARRIER CONTRACT AWARD RECOMMENDATION - (ACTION MAY BE 

TAKEN) 
Staff will recommend that the Board award a contract to Complete Coach Works in the 
amount of $666,213.67 for the acquisition, fabrication and installation of driver barriers for 
District’s Gillig and Nova bus fleets. 

 
9. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT - (INFORMATIONAL) 

The General Manager will provide an update on district activities. 
 
10. OTHER BUSINESS AND REPORTS - (INFORMATIONAL) 
 The Board will report on other related public transit issues and committee meetings.  
 
11. ADJOURNMENT 



 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS DRAFT MINUTES 

 
SPECIAL MEETING  

of the 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

of the 
SANTA BARBARA METROPOLITAN TRANSIT DISTRICT 

A Public Agency 
Tuesday, August 4, 2020 

8:30 AM  
VIA TELECONFERENCE 

 
This meeting was conducted utilizing teleconferencing and electronic means consistent with State 
of California Executive Order N-29-20 dated March 17, 2020, regarding the COVID-19 pandemic. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

Chair Dave Davis called the meeting to order at 8:31 AM. 
 
2. ROLL CALL OF THE BOARD MEMBERS 

Chair Davis conducted a roll call and reported that all members were present with the 
exceptions of Vice Chair Dave Tabor and Director Dick Weinberg. 

 
3. REPORT REGARDING POSTING OF AGENDA 

Christina Perry, Clerk of the Board and Administrative Assistant, reported that the agenda 
was posted on Thursday, July 31, 2020, at MTD’s Administrative office, mailed and 
emailed to those on the agenda list, and posted on MTD’s website. 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
 
4. APPROVAL OF PRIOR MINUTES - (ACTION MAY BE TAKEN) 

The Board of Directors was asked to approve the draft minutes for the meeting of July 7, 
2020.   
 

5. CASH REPORT - (ACTION MAY BE TAKEN) 
The Board of Directors was asked to review and approve the Cash Report from the 
following dates: June 27, 2020 through July 10, 2020. 

 
Director Olivia Rodriguez moved to approve the Consent Calendar.  Director Paula Perotte 
seconded the motion.  Chair Davis opened a roll call vote and the motion passed 
unanimously. 
 

THIS CONCLUDES THE CONSENT CALENDAR 
  
6. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 Two members of the public made comments.  Dorian Belmonte provided comment via 

email regarding face-covering exemptions as outlined by the County of Santa Barbara 
Health Officer Order No. 2020-10. 



BOARD OF DIRECTORS DRAFT MINUTES 
 

2 

 Howard Green provided comment via Zoom regarding Board packet distribution and 
ridership statistics. 

 
7.  SUSTAINABLE TRANSPORTATION PLANNING GRANT RESOLUTION - 

(ATTACHMENT - ACTION MAY BE TAKEN) 
Planning and Marketing Manager Hillary Blackerby recommended that the Board adopt 
Resolution 2020-04 authorizing General Manager Jerry Estrada, or designee, to execute 
all required documents to claim funds awarded through the Fiscal Year 2020-21 California 
Department of Transportation (Caltrans) Sustainable Transportation Planning Grant 
Program. 

 
Director Chuck McQuary moved to adopt Resolution 2020-04.  Director Rodriguez 
seconded the motion.  Chair Davis opened a roll call vote and the motion passed 
unanimously. 

 
8. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT - (INFORMATIONAL) 

General Manager Estrada provided an update on the Covid-19 pandemic efforts. 
 
ITEM 9 WAS ADDRESSED AFTER CLOSED SESSION ITEMS 10 AND 11. 
 
10. RECESS TO CLOSED SESSION: REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATIONS (CALLE REAL) 

- (ACTION MAY BE TAKEN)    
The Board met in closed session, pursuant to Government Code §54956.8, conference 
with real property negotiators, regarding the MTD Calle Real property located at 4678 
Calle Real/149 North San Antonio Road (APNs 059-140-004, 059-140-005, 059-140-006, 
and 067-230-026).  Under negotiation were price and terms of payment. 
 
Agency negotiators: General Manager Jerry Estrada, Graham Lyons.   
Other negotiating parties: FPA Multifamily, Housing Authority of Santa Barbara County. 
 
No public comments regarding this Closed Session item were made prior to recess. 

 
 Chair Davis recessed the Board to Closed Session at 8:53 AM. 
 
 The Board reconvened at 9:28 AM.  Chair Davis reported that the following action was 

taken: The Board rejected all proposals and responses to the June 8, 2018, Request for 
Qualifications/Request for Proposals for development of the MTD Calle Real Property.  
The Board then instructed its Agency Negotiator to prepare a new Combined Request for 
Qualifications/Request for Proposals for development of the MTD Calle Real Property to 
solicit new proposals for development of the Calle Real property.  
 

11. RECESS TO CLOSED SESSION: CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL 
REGARDING LITIGATION - (ACTION MAY BE TAKEN)    
The Board met in closed session with legal counsel, pursuant to Government Code § 
54956.9 (a) regarding: Gloria Bravo De Ayala, and Santiago Ayala Cazares v. Aura Leticia 
Mjangos, Santa Barbara Metropolitan Transit District, et al. (Superior Court State of 
California, County of Santa Barbara – Case No: 20CV02349) and § 54956.9 (b), 
regarding: Significant exposure to potential litigation based on existing facts and 
circumstances (unknown number of cases). 
 
No public comments regarding this Closed Session item were made prior to recess. 



BOARD OF DIRECTORS DRAFT MINUTES 
 

3 

 Chair Davis reported that the following action was taken: The Board voted to authorize 
payment of its full Self-Insured Retention amount of $250,000.00 if the potential to resolve 
the litigation entitled “Gloria Bravo De Ayala, and Santiago Ayala Cazares v. Aura Leticia 
Mjangos, Santa Barbara Metropolitan Transit District, et al. (Superior Court State of 
California, County of Santa Barbara – Case No: 20CV02349),” as well as any other matter 
related to the same bus incident described therein, should arise. 

 
9. OTHER BUSINESS AND REPORTS - (INFORMATIONAL) 
 The Board discussed administrative matters.  
 
12. ADJOURNMENT 
 Director Rordriguez moved to adjourn the meeting and was seconded by Chair Davis.  

The meeting adjourned at 9:32 AM.  



Santa Barbara Metropolitan Transit District

Cash Report
Board Meeting of September 1, 2020

For the Period July 11, 2020 through August 21, 2020

$4,148,507.85

MONEY MARKET

Beginning Balance July 11, 2020

Accounts Receivable 1,849,716.07
Prepaids & Advertising 10,814.70
Measure A Transfer 4,536.81
Miscellaneous Income 3,730.25
Interest Income 1,373.33
Passenger Fares 69.00
LCTOP Transfer .00

1,870,240.16Total Deposits

(1,637.91)Miscellaneous Transfers
(3,926.26)Bank & Credit Card Fees

(52,841.96)Workers' Compensation
(110,263.85)401(k)/Pension Transfer
(443,845.69)Payroll Taxes
(997,633.97)Payroll

(1,561,157.35)Accounts Payable

(3,171,306.99)Total Disbursements

CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT
Institution Maturity Rate

2/28/2021 2.00% 1,521,494.82American Riviera Bank

$1,521,494.82

Total Certificates of Deposit 1,521,494.82

$4,368,935.84Total Cash and Investments as of August 21, 2020:

CASH INVESTMENTS 

WC / Liability Reserves ($4,901,117.93)

Ending Balance

4,368,935.84

Working Capital

LAIF Account $5,845,344.98

Total Cash Balance $10,214,280.82

Money Market Account

$5,313,162.89

SELF INSURED LIABILITY ACCOUNTS

24-Aug-20Cash Report Cover Sheet 15:06



Santa Barbara Metropolitan Transit District
Cash Receipts of Accounts Receivable

Date Company Description Amount

7/17/2020 Jim Haggerty                       Retiree - Vision                                                 12.20

7/17/2020 Wells Marketing, LLC               Advertising on Buses                                             1,731.60

7/17/2020 Wells Marketing, LLC               Advertising on Buses                                             1,328.40

7/20/2020 Montecito Bank & Trust             Advertising on Buses                                             3,247.00

7/24/2020 LOSSAN Rail Corridor Agency        LOSSAN Contract Revenue Jan-Mar 2020 9,735.00

7/24/2020 Moonlight Graphics/Mktg            Advertising on Buses                                             4,203.00

7/24/2020 Sansum Clinic                      Advertising on Buses                                             2,934.00

7/24/2020 Sansum Clinic                      Advertising on Buses                                             2,934.00

7/27/2020 S.B.C.A.G.                         Amtrak Connecting Service - Mar 2020 11,317.88

7/31/2020 CalPERS                            OPEB Reimbursement - May 2020 5,282.68

7/31/2020 Cottage Hospital                   Passes/Token Sales                                               7,800.00

7/31/2020 True Media LLC/Cottage Health      Advertising on Buses                                             936.00

8/5/2020 Local Transportation Fund          SB 325 - Jul 2020 812,357.22

8/5/2020 Measure A, Section 3 LSTI          Measure A Funds - Jul 2020 218,007.93

8/5/2020 Santa Barbara County - Census      Advertising on Buses                                             3,480.00

8/7/2020 Goodwin & Thyne Properties         Advertising on Buses                                             1,040.00

8/12/2020 Federal Transit Administration     FTA Operating Assist. Cares Act 750,727.00

8/14/2020 Wells Marketing, LLC               Advertising on Buses                                             1,328.40

8/21/2020 CalPERS                            OPEB Reimbursement - Jun 2020 5,379.16

8/21/2020 Moonlight Graphics/Mktg            Advertising on Buses                                             4,203.00

8/21/2020 Wells Marketing, LLC               Advertising on Buses                                             1,731.60

$1,849,716.07Total Accounts Receivable Paid During Period

8/24/2020 3:06:45 PMCash Report Accounts Receivable Printed



Santa Barbara Metropolitan Transit District 
Accounts Payable

Check # Date Company Description Amount Voids

  123405 3/13/2020 VISIT SANTA BARBARA                MEMBERSHIP DUES                                   75.00 V

  123499 3/27/2020 TANK TEAM INC.                     TANK TESTS                                                 221.96 V

  124174 6/25/2020 CUMMINS SALES & SERVICE    dba  BUS PARTS & REPAIRS                              0.00 V

  124266 7/3/2020 TRUMAN ARNOLD COMPANIES (T DIESEL FUEL                                                0.00 V

  124267 7/3/2020 TRUMAN ARNOLD COMPANIES (T DIESEL FUEL                                                0.00 V

  124328 7/14/2020 CUSTOM WOODWORKS    DBA VENDOR BUS REPAIRS 2,450.00  

  124329 7/17/2020 ABC BUS COMPANIES INC              BUS PARTS                                                   549.16  

  124330 7/17/2020 ACCOUNTEMPS             DBA        CONTRACT EMPLOYMENT                      4,184.32  

  124331 7/17/2020 AMERICAN MOVING PARTS, LLC    BUS PARTS                                                   47.41  

  124332 7/17/2020 HENRY ANDREWS                      RETIREE HEALTH REIMBURSEMENT    285.00  

  124333 7/17/2020 ASBURY ENVIRONMENTAL SERVI WASTE OIL RECYCLER                             160.00  

  124334 7/17/2020 AUTOZONE STORES LLC                SHOP SUPPLIES                                           8.59  

  124335 7/17/2020 BIG BRAND TIRES, BRANDCO BILL SERVICE VEHICLE MAINTENANCE        75.01  

  124336 7/17/2020 JAMES BRACKETT                     RETIREE HEALTH REIMBURSEMENT    35.00  

  124337 7/17/2020 KARL BRETZ                         RETIREE HEALTH REIMBURSEMENT    20.60  

  124338 7/17/2020 BROWN ARMSTRONG ACCOUNTA ANNUAL AUDIT                                          2,000.00  

  124339 7/17/2020 BROWN & BROWN/WHILT FATCH  D&O AND EPLI INSURANCE                     1,575.00  

  124340 7/17/2020 ROBERT BURNHAM                     RETIREE HEALTH REIMB/SDRMA REF 285.00  

  124341 7/17/2020 GILBERT CALLES                     RETIREE HEALTH REIMBURSEMENT    356.00  

  124342 7/17/2020 CITY OF SANTA BARBARA              CSR PARKING PERMITS                            40.00  

  124343 7/17/2020 CELTIS VENTURES, INC.              MARKETING SERVICES                             5,985.00  

  124344 7/17/2020 STAN CISOWSKI                      RETIREE HEALTH REIMBURSEMENT    274.90  

  124345 7/17/2020 CINTAS CORPORATION                 FIRST AID SUPPLIES                                   234.67  

  124346 7/17/2020 CUMMINS SALES & SERVICE    dba  BUS PARTS & REPAIRS                              11,353.22  

  124347 7/17/2020 NANCY CURTIS                       RETIREE HEALTH REIMBURSEMENT    191.12  

  124348 7/17/2020 DOCUPRODUCTS CORPORATION    COPIER MAINTENANCE/SUPPLIES         172.79  

  124349 7/17/2020 EASY LIFT TRANSPORTATION, INC MONTHLY ADA SUBSIDY                         80,969.50  

  124350 7/17/2020 EKOS                     DBA       FUELING SYSTEM SOFTWARE                345.00  

  124351 7/17/2020 ESP LOCKSMITH             DBA      B&G REPAIRS & SUPPLIES                        89.23  

  124352 7/17/2020 FAUVER, LARGE, ARCHBALD&SPR LEGAL COUNSEL                                        11,562.79  

  124353 7/17/2020 FIRST LOAN                         PR RELATED                                                 50.00  

  124354 7/17/2020 SHERRIE FISHER                     RETIREE HEALTH REIMBURSEMENT    320.54  

  124355 7/17/2020 FLEET SERVICES, INC.               BUS PARTS                                                   30.31  

  124356 7/17/2020 FRONTIER CALIFORNIA INC.           TELEPHONE SERVICE                                100.98  

  124357 7/17/2020 GENFARE, A DIVISION OF SPX COR FAREBOX REPAIRS & PARTS                   650.25  

  124358 7/17/2020 G.L. HYDRAULICS INC.               VENDOR BUS REPAIRS                              657.50  

  124359 7/17/2020 GIBBS INTERNATIONAL INC            BUS PARTS                                                   720.44  

  124360 7/17/2020 GILLIG LLC                         BUS PARTS                                                   5,204.02  

15:0024-Aug-20Accounts Payable Check Register



Check # Date Company Description Amount Voids

  124361 7/17/2020 GARY GLEASON                       RETIREE HEALTH REIMBURSEMENT    495.00  

  124362 7/17/2020 GRAPHICINK                         PRINTING SERVICES                                  204.45  

  124363 7/17/2020 GRAINGER, INC.                     SHOP/B&G SUPPLIES                                  51.12  

  124364 7/17/2020 JILL GRISHAM                       RETIREE HEALTH REIMB/SDRMA REF 260.23  

  124365 7/17/2020 ALI HABIBI                         RETIREE HEALTH REIMBURSEMENT    285.00  

  124366 7/17/2020 HAYWARD LUMBER                     SHOP SUPPLIES                                           53.74  

  124367 7/17/2020 HOME IMPROVEMENT CTR.             SHOP/B&G SUPPLIES                                  66.07  

  124368 7/17/2020 UNITED STATES TREASURY - IRS   PAYROLL RELATED                                   250.00  

  124369 7/17/2020 JAY DANIEL ROBERTSON               RETIREE HEALTH REIMBURSEMENT    285.00  

  124370 7/17/2020 LOUIS JONES                        RETIREE HEALTH REIMBURSEMENT    221.00  

  124371 7/17/2020 MONTE KIMZEY                       RETIREE HEALTH REIMBURSEMENT    120.00  

  124372 7/17/2020 LMA ARCHITECTS, CORP.              TC CONSTRUCTION OVERSIGHT            370.65  

  124373 7/17/2020 LOUIS MANDEVILLE                   RETIREE HEALTH REIMBURSEMENT    285.00  

  124374 7/17/2020 MARBORG INDUSTRIES (INC)          UTILITIES & RENTAL FEES                       213.75  

  124375 7/17/2020 MC CORMIX CORP. (OIL)              LUBRICANTS                                                2,164.52  

  124376 7/17/2020 MIKE CUEVAS GARDENING SERVI LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE SERVICE 765.00  

  124377 7/17/2020 MOHAWK MFG. AND SUPPLY CO.   BUS PARTS                                                   2,901.87  

  124378 7/17/2020 NEW PIG CORP.                      BUS CLEANING SUPPLIES                         1,081.85  

  124379 7/17/2020 NEWTON CONSTRUCTION & MGM TRANSIT CENTER RENOVATIONS          79,245.48  

  124380 7/17/2020 NFI PARTS      DBA                 BUS PARTS                                                   1,095.60  

  124381 7/17/2020 O'REILLY AUTO PARTS    DBA         BUS PARTS                                                   9.23  

  124382 7/17/2020 CARLOS ORNELAS                     RETIREE HEALTH REIMBURSEMENT    40.00  

  124383 7/17/2020 PACIFIC POWER GROUP                BUS PARTS                                                   174.79  

  124384 7/17/2020 CAREY POINDEXTER                   RETIREE HEALTH REIMBURSEMENT    285.00  

  124385 7/17/2020 POWERSTRIDE BATTERY CO.          BATTERIES                                                   1,763.61  

  124386 7/17/2020 LETICIA RAMIREZ                    PAYROLL RELATED                                   650.00  

  124387 7/17/2020 REPUBLIC ELEVATOR, INC             ELEVATOR MAINTENANCE                     170.00  

  124388 7/17/2020 R.C. SIMPSON, INC.                 RETAINER FEE                                             75.00  

  124389 7/17/2020 AL ROMERO SR.                      RETIREE HEALTH REIMBURSEMENT    178.00  

  124390 7/17/2020 SB COUNTY FEDERAL CREDIT UNI PAYROLL DEDUCTION                              260.00  

  124391 7/17/2020 SILVAS OIL CO., INC.               LUBRICANTS                                                181.76  

  124392 7/17/2020 SM TIRE, CORP.                     BUS TIRE MOUNTING                                190.74  

  124393 7/17/2020 SOAP MAN DISTRIBUTIN   DBA       CLEANING SUPPLIES                                 172.91  

  124394 7/17/2020 STAPLES CONTRACT & COMMERC OFFICE SUPPLIES                                        97.52  

  124395 7/17/2020 STATE BOARD OF EQUALIZATION PAYROLL RELATED                                   250.00  

  124396 7/17/2020 TELCOM, INC.                       RADIO PARTS & REPAIRS                         328.72  

  124397 7/17/2020 TEAMSTERS PENSION TRUST          UNION PENSION                                          85,887.39  

  124398 7/17/2020 TEAMSTERS UNION LOCAL NO. 18 UNION DUES                                                9,614.94  

  124399 7/17/2020 TRAPEZE SOFTWARE GROUP, INC. ANNUAL SOFTWARE LICENSE FEES      32,732.00  

  124400 7/17/2020 TRUMAN ARNOLD COMPANIES (T DIESEL FUEL                                                42,473.75  

  124401 7/17/2020 VALLEY POWER SYSTEMS, INC.      BUS PARTS                                                   361.32  

15:0024-Aug-20Accounts Payable Check Register



Check # Date Company Description Amount Voids

  124402 7/17/2020 JOHN J. VASQUEZ                    RETIREE HEALTH REIMBURSEMENT    863.15 V

  124403 7/17/2020 VERSATILE SYSTEMS, INC.            FALL ARREST SYSTEM                              2,999.06  

  124404 7/17/2020 WAXIE SANITARY SUPPLY      DBA JANITORIAL SUPPLIES                              1,164.28  

  124405 7/17/2020 WORKER'S COMPENSATION ADMI PROFESSIONAL SERVICES                        15,797.50  

  124406 7/17/2020 YELLOW (YRC) TRANSPORTATION FREIGHT CHARGES                                    384.53  

  124407 7/23/2020 ABC BUS COMPANIES INC              BUS PARTS                                                   183.50  

  124408 7/23/2020 BIG BRAND TIRES, BRANDCO BILL SERVICE VEHICLE MAINTENANCE        85.61  

  124409 7/23/2020 BYD MOTORS LLC                     CAPITAL LEASE PAYMENT 31,625.22  

  124410 7/23/2020 CINTAS CORPORATION                 FIRST AID SUPPLIES                                   228.21  

  124411 7/23/2020 CUMMINS SALES & SERVICE    dba  BUS PARTS & REPAIRS                              7,123.01  

  124412 7/23/2020 CA DEPT. OF TAX & FEE ADMIN.     QTRLY USER FUEL TAX                            1,202.20  

  124413 7/23/2020 CA. DEPT. of TAX & FEE ADMINIST UNDERGROUND STORAGE TANK FEE  2,391.00  

  124414 7/23/2020 DENMUN OFFICE SOLUTIONS   DB IT CONTRACT SERVICES                          4,165.00  

  124415 7/23/2020 EKOS                     DBA       FUELING SYSTEM SOFTWARE                1,380.00  

  124416 7/23/2020 FEDEX         dba                  FREIGHT CHARGES                                    102.39  

  124417 7/23/2020 FLEET SERVICES, INC.               BUS PARTS                                                   1,214.91  

  124418 7/23/2020 FRONTIER CALIFORNIA INC.           TELEPHONE SERVICE                                2,049.14  

  124419 7/23/2020 GENFARE, A DIVISION OF SPX COR FAREBOX REPAIRS & PARTS                   1,200.00  

  124420 7/23/2020 GIBBS INTERNATIONAL INC            BUS PARTS                                                   443.07  

  124421 7/23/2020 GILLIG LLC                         BUS PARTS                                                   3,951.74  

  124422 7/23/2020 GOLD COAST TRANSPORT REFRIG BUS A/C MAINTENANCE                           691.75  

  124423 7/23/2020 HAYWARD LUMBER                     SHOP SUPPLIES                                           60.86  

  124424 7/23/2020 LARA'S AUTO REPAIR  DBA            BUS REPAIRS                                               2,346.19  

  124425 7/23/2020 LUMINATOR TECHNOLOGY GROU BUS PARTS                                                   9.19  

  124426 7/23/2020 MARTIN AUTO COLOR, INC.            BUS SUPPLIES                                              104.40  

  124427 7/23/2020 MC CORMIX CORP. (GAS)              FUEL-SERVICE VEHICLES                         1,753.83  

  124428 7/23/2020 MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY CO.       SHOP/B&G SUPPLIES                                  267.22  

  124429 7/23/2020 MULLEN & HENZELL                   CALLE REAL PROJECT SERVICES           6,445.20  

  124430 7/23/2020 NATIONAL INTERSTATE INS INC.   LIABILITY INSURANCE                             36,510.05  

  124431 7/23/2020 NEOPART TRANSIT LLC                BUS PARTS                                                   12.79  

  124432 7/23/2020 NEWEGG BUSINESS, INC               IT EQUIPMENT & SUPPLIES                      1,922.13  

  124433 7/23/2020 NFI PARTS      DBA                 BUS PARTS                                                   546.92  

  124434 7/23/2020 O'REILLY AUTO PARTS    DBA         BUS PARTS                                                   79.52  

  124435 7/23/2020 PERRY LINCOLN MERCURY MAZD SERVICE VEHICLE PARTS / REPAIRS     104.10  

  124436 7/23/2020 POWERSTRIDE BATTERY CO.          BATTERIES                                                   118.31  

  124437 7/23/2020 SILVAS OIL CO., INC.               LUBRICANTS                                                197.69  

  124438 7/23/2020 SO. CAL. EDISON CO.                UTILITIES                                                      6,817.62  

  124439 7/23/2020 SOCALGAS                           UTILITIES                                                      174.06  

  124440 7/23/2020 STAPLES CONTRACT & COMMERC OFFICE SUPPLIES                                        532.36  

  124441 7/23/2020 TEAMSTERS PENSION TRUST          UNION PENSION                                          46.26  

  124442 7/23/2020 TRUMAN ARNOLD COMPANIES (T DIESEL FUEL                                                21,185.60  

15:0024-Aug-20Accounts Payable Check Register



Check # Date Company Description Amount Voids

  124443 7/23/2020 UNITED REFRIGERATION INC.         BUS AIR CONDITIONING SUPPLIES        577.92  

  124444 7/23/2020 U.S. BANK CORP. PAYMENT SYSTE CREDIT CARD PURCHASES                      1,626.31  

  124445 7/23/2020 VALLEY POWER SYSTEMS, INC.      BUS PARTS                                                   104.76  

  124446 7/23/2020 VALLEY POWER SYSTEMS, INC.      BUS PARTS                                                   1,961.06  

  124447 7/23/2020 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE PROGRA BUS PARTS                                                   1,220.18  

  124448 7/23/2020 VERIZON WIRELESS                   WIRELESS PHONES & AIM CELLULAR  735.65  

  124449 7/23/2020 VISIT SANTA BARBARA                MEMBERSHIP DUES                                   475.00  

  124450 7/23/2020 WURTH USA WEST INC.                SHOP SUPPLIES                                           765.45  

  124451 7/23/2020 YELLOW (YRC) TRANSPORTATION FREIGHT CHARGES                                    275.58  

  124452 7/23/2020 BYD MOTORS LLC                     CAPITAL LEASE PAYMENT 31,625.22  

  124453 7/23/2020 VERIZON WIRELESS                   WIRELESS PHONES & AIM CELLULAR  2,996.75  

  124454 7/31/2020 ABC BUS COMPANIES INC              BUS PARTS                                                   629.75  

  124455 7/31/2020 ACCOUNTEMPS             DBA        CONTRACT EMPLOYMENT                      1,494.40  

  124456 7/31/2020 ASBURY ENVIRONMENTAL SERVI WASTE OIL RECYCLER                             160.00  

  124457 7/31/2020 BROWN & BROWN INSURANCE SE D&O AND EPLI INSURANCE                     8,314.72  

  124458 7/31/2020 CITY OF SANTA BARBARA              CSR PARKING PERMITS                            6.50  

  124459 7/31/2020 CLEVER DEVICES LTD                 TC RENOVATIONS 9,480.00  

  124460 7/31/2020 CINTAS CORPORATION                 FIRST AID SUPPLIES                                   27.73  

  124461 7/31/2020 COX COMMUNICATIONS, CORP.     INTERNET & CABLE TV                             295.00  

  124462 7/31/2020 CUMMINS SALES & SERVICE    dba  BUS PARTS & REPAIRS                              1,820.08  

  124463 7/31/2020 CDTFA                              SALES/CONSUMER USE TAX                    859.00  

  124464 7/31/2020 DEPT OF TOXIC SUBSTANCES CON EPA MANIFEST ANNUAL FEE                  207.50  

  124465 7/31/2020 DIESEL FORWARD, INC.               BUS PARTS                                                   5,158.77  

  124466 7/31/2020 FIRST LOAN                         PR RELATED                                                 50.00  

  124467 7/31/2020 FLEET SERVICES, INC.               BUS PARTS                                                   303.47  

  124468 7/31/2020 5STAR TILE              DBA        TC RENOVATIONS                                      1,100.00  

  124469 7/31/2020 GIBBS INTERNATIONAL INC            BUS PARTS                                                   704.11  

  124470 7/31/2020 GILLIG LLC                         BUS PARTS                                                   4,405.19  

  124471 7/31/2020 GRAINGER, INC.                     SHOP/B&G SUPPLIES                                  4.39  

  124472 7/31/2020 GRAYBAR ELECTRIC COMPANY, I REPAIRS & SUPPLIES T1 BLDG/GRDS    3,223.07  

  124473 7/31/2020 HAYWARD LUMBER                     SHOP SUPPLIES                                           18.49  

  124474 7/31/2020 HOME IMPROVEMENT CTR.             SHOP/B&G SUPPLIES                                  55.37  

  124475 7/31/2020 INTELLICORP RECORD INC.            PRE-EMPLOYMENT CHECK                      85.00  

  124476 7/31/2020 IRON HORSE AUTO BODY OF SB  D SERVICE VEHICLE REPAIRS                     813.91  

  124477 7/31/2020 UNITED STATES TREASURY - IRS   PAYROLL RELATED                                   250.00  

  124478 7/31/2020 J n L GLASS INC.                   REPLACE BUS WINDOWS                         350.18  

  124479 7/31/2020 LANSPEED                   DBA     IT SERVICES                                                 375.00  

  124480 7/31/2020 MARBORG INDUSTRIES (INC)          UTILITIES & RENTAL FEES                       181.13  

  124481 7/31/2020 MC CORMIX CORP. (OIL)              LUBRICANTS                                                164.60  

  124482 7/31/2020 MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY CO.       SHOP/B&G SUPPLIES                                  14.74  

  124483 7/31/2020 MOHAWK MFG. AND SUPPLY CO.   BUS PARTS                                                   93.32  

15:0024-Aug-20Accounts Payable Check Register



Check # Date Company Description Amount Voids

  124484 7/31/2020 NATIONAL DRIVE                     PAYROLL DEDUCTION                              48.00  

  124485 7/31/2020 NEOPART TRANSIT LLC                BUS PARTS                                                   1,212.89  

  124486 7/31/2020 NFI PARTS      DBA                 BUS PARTS                                                   1,602.58  

  124487 7/31/2020 PREVOST CAR (US) INC.              BUS PARTS                                                   74.90  

  124488 7/31/2020 POWERSTRIDE BATTERY CO.          BATTERIES                                                   598.89  

  124489 7/31/2020 REMIX SOFTWARE, INC.               ROUTE PLANNING SOFTWARE               90,900.00  

  124490 7/31/2020 QUINN ROLLEN                       DMV/RTT REIMBURSEMENTS                 10.00  

  124491 7/31/2020 NOLAN D ROBERTSON                  REIMBURSEMENTS                                    300.00  

  124492 7/31/2020 SB COUNTY FEDERAL CREDIT UNI PAYROLL DEDUCTION                              260.00  

  124493 7/31/2020 SB LOCKSMITHS, INC.                B&G REPAIR & SUPPLIES                          18.12  

  124494 7/31/2020 SILVAS OIL CO., INC.               LUBRICANTS                                                153.90  

  124495 7/31/2020 SM TIRE, CORP.                     BUS TIRE MOUNTING                                183.00  

  124496 7/31/2020 STANTEC ARCHITECTURE INC.       FACILITIES MASTER PLAN                       7,064.00  

  124497 7/31/2020 STAPLES CONTRACT & COMMERC OFFICE SUPPLIES                                        270.19  

  124498 7/31/2020 STEWART'S DE-ROOTING & PLUM PLUMBING REPAIRS                                  437.00  

  124499 7/31/2020 SB CITY OF-REFUSE/WATER            UTILITIES                                                      445.04  

  124500 7/31/2020 SB COUNTY-AUDITOR/CONTROLL LAFCO BUDGET PRO RATA SHARE        6,977.00  

  124501 7/31/2020 THE MEDCENTER                      MEDICAL EXAMS                                        1,778.00  

  124502 7/31/2020 TANK TEAM INC.                     TANK TESTS                                                 370.50  

  124503 7/31/2020 TEAMSTERS UNION LOCAL NO. 18 UNION DUES                                                540.90  

  124504 7/31/2020 TRUMAN ARNOLD COMPANIES (T DIESEL FUEL                                                21,157.02  

  124505 7/31/2020 UNITED PARCEL SERVICE, INC.       FREIGHT CHARGES                                    267.56  

  124506 7/31/2020 UNITED WAY OF SB                   PAYROLL DEDUCTION                              102.00  

  124507 7/31/2020 VALLEY POWER SYSTEMS, INC.      BUS PARTS                                                   891.50  

  124508 7/31/2020 VC STAR / DESK SPINCO, INC         PUBLIC NOTICE ADS                                  168.38  

  124509 7/31/2020 WAXIE SANITARY SUPPLY      DBA JANITORIAL SUPPLIES                              3,551.41  

  124510 7/31/2020 YACO SCHOLARSHIP FUND              PAYROLL DEDUCTION                              77.00  

  124511 7/31/2020 YELLOW (YRC) TRANSPORTATION FREIGHT CHARGES                                    130.12  

  124512 8/6/2020 ABC BUS COMPANIES INC              BUS PARTS                                                   380.65  

  124513 8/6/2020 ACCOUNTEMPS             DBA        CONTRACT EMPLOYMENT                      2,689.92  

  124514 8/6/2020 AUTOZONE STORES LLC                SHOP SUPPLIES                                           38.21  

  124515 8/6/2020 BAY ALARM COMPANY, INC            ALARM CONTRACT                                    210.00  

  124516 8/6/2020 BICKMORE ACTUARIAL    DBA        WC ACTUARIAL REVIEW                          2,000.00  

  124517 8/6/2020 BNS ELECTRONICS, INC.              SANTA YNEZ SITE RENTAL                      305.00  

  124518 8/6/2020 CAPITOL HARDWARE & BUILDING B&G SUPPLIES                                             855.19  

  124519 8/6/2020 CITY OF SANTA BARBARA              CSR PARKING PERMITS                            40.00  

  124520 8/6/2020 CENTRAL COAST CIRCULATION, L BUS BOOK DISTRIBUTION                       627.00  

  124521 8/6/2020 COMMUNITY RADIO, INC.              GIBRALTAR SITE RENTAL                        273.85  

  124522 8/6/2020 CUMMINS SALES & SERVICE    dba  BUS PARTS & REPAIRS                              608.64  

  124523 8/6/2020 DAVID DAVIS JR.                    DIRECTOR FEES                                          180.00  

  124524 8/6/2020 DIESEL FORWARD, INC.               BUS PARTS                                                   4,201.70  

15:0024-Aug-20Accounts Payable Check Register



Check # Date Company Description Amount Voids

  124525 8/6/2020 ECO-T TIRE & RETREADING, LLC    BUS TIRE MOUNTING                                513.08  

  124526 8/6/2020 GIBBS INTERNATIONAL INC            BUS PARTS                                                   1,115.10  

  124527 8/6/2020 GILLIG LLC                         BUS PARTS                                                   1,611.04  

  124528 8/6/2020 GOLD COAST TRANSPORT REFRIG BUS A/C MAINTENANCE                           2,169.51  

  124529 8/6/2020 GOODYEAR TIRE & RUBBER CO     BUS TIRE LEASE                                          10,946.88  

  124530 8/6/2020 GRAPHICINK                         PRINTING SERVICES                                  1,433.33  

  124531 8/6/2020 GUARDIAN-APPLETON (DENTAL I DENTAL INSURANCE                                 5,081.94  

  124532 8/6/2020 GUARDIAN-APPLETON (LIFE INS)   LIFE INSURANCE                                        1,080.70  

  124533 8/6/2020 STEPHEN HAHN                       TRAVEL REIMBURSEMENT                      217.53  

  124534 8/6/2020 HI-LINE ELECTRIC COMPANY, INC BUS PARTS                                                   371.69  

  124535 8/6/2020 HOME IMPROVEMENT CTR.             SHOP/B&G SUPPLIES                                  8.77  

  124536 8/6/2020 HR AUTOGLASS  DBA                  BUS PARTS/REPAIRS                                  1,200.00  

  124537 8/6/2020 MARBORG INDUSTRIES (INC)          UTILITIES & RENTAL FEES                       213.75  

  124538 8/6/2020 MC CORMIX CORP. (OIL)              LUBRICANTS                                                2,164.52  

  124539 8/6/2020 MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY CO.       SHOP/B&G SUPPLIES                                  1,904.62  

  124540 8/6/2020 MEDICAL EYE SERVICES, INC.         VISION INSURANCE                                   601.46  

  124541 8/6/2020 CHUCK MCQUARY                      DIRECTOR FEES                                          60.00  

  124542 8/6/2020 MISSION LINEN SUPPLY, INC          UNIFORM & LINEN SERVICE                    8,463.85  

  124543 8/6/2020 MOUNTAIN SPRING WATER             SHOP & OFFICE SUPPLIES                         961.45  

  124544 8/6/2020 MUNOZ JANITORIAL                   JANITORIAL/DISINFECTANT SERVICES 27,190.00  

  124545 8/6/2020 NEWEGG BUSINESS, INC               IT EQUIPMENT & SUPPLIES                      569.00  

  124546 8/6/2020 PAULA A. PEROTTE                   DIRECTOR FEES                                          60.00  

  124547 8/6/2020 OLIVIA RODRIGUEZ                   DIRECTOR FEES                                          60.00  

  124548 8/6/2020 NOLAN D ROBERTSON                  REIMBURSEMENTS                                    117.20  

  124549 8/6/2020 SAFETY-KLEEN CORPORATION      SHOP SUPPLIES                                           341.82  

  124550 8/6/2020 SILVAS OIL CO., INC.               LUBRICANTS                                                193.71  

  124551 8/6/2020 SPECIAL DISTRICT RISK MGMENT HEALTH INSURANCE                                 61,065.36  

  124552 8/6/2020 SANTA BARBARA TROPHY               DRIVER NAME PLATES                             25.12  

  124553 8/6/2020 WILLIAM JOHN SHELOR                DIRECTOR FEES                                          180.00  

  124554 8/6/2020 SM TIRE, CORP.                     BUS TIRE MOUNTING                                463.00  

  124555 8/6/2020 SO. CAL. EDISON CO.                UTILITIES                                                      4,932.42  

  124556 8/6/2020 SB CITY OF-REFUSE/WATER            UTILITIES                                                      4,572.72  

  124557 8/6/2020 TK SERVICE, INC.                   BUS PARTS & REPAIRS                              6,546.58  

  124558 8/6/2020 DAVID T. TABOR                     DIRECTOR FEES                                          180.00  

  124559 8/6/2020 TANK TEAM INC.                     TANK TESTS                                                 123.00  

  124560 8/6/2020 TRI-CO REPROGRAPHICS         DBA BLUE PRINT COPIES                                   21.75  

  124561 8/6/2020 TRUMAN ARNOLD COMPANIES (T DIESEL FUEL                                                42,458.60  

  124562 8/6/2020 J.C. M. AND ASSOCIATES INC.        UNIFORMS                                                    866.72  

  124563 8/6/2020 VALLEY POWER SYSTEMS, INC.      BUS PARTS                                                   880.52  

  124564 8/6/2020 WAXIE SANITARY SUPPLY      DBA JANITORIAL SUPPLIES                              132.58  

  124565 8/6/2020 RICHARD WEINBERG                   DIRECTOR FEES                                          60.00  

15:0024-Aug-20Accounts Payable Check Register



Check # Date Company Description Amount Voids

  124566 8/6/2020 YELLOW (YRC) TRANSPORTATION FREIGHT CHARGES                                    200.40  

  124567 8/14/2020 ABC BUS COMPANIES INC              BUS PARTS                                                   529.76  

  124568 8/14/2020 ACCOUNTEMPS             DBA        CONTRACT EMPLOYMENT                      1,401.00  

  124569 8/14/2020 AIA SANTA BARBARA CHAPTER     SPONSORSHIP 500.00  

  124570 8/14/2020 AMERICAN MOVING PARTS, LLC    BUS PARTS                                                   669.94  

  124571 8/14/2020 HENRY ANDREWS                      RETIREE HEALTH REIMBURSEMENT    285.00  

  124572 8/14/2020 BIG BRAND TIRES, BRANDCO BILL SERVICE VEHICLE MAINTENANCE        1,099.08  

  124573 8/14/2020 ROBERT BURNHAM                     RETIREE HEALTH REIMB/SDRMA REF 285.00  

  124574 8/14/2020 MANUEL CASTANON                    DMV REIMBURSEMENT                            54.00  

  124575 8/14/2020 CHARGEPOINT, INC.                  BOLT CHARGING STATIONS INSTALL 16,800.00  

  124576 8/14/2020 STAN CISOWSKI                      RETIREE HEALTH REIMBURSEMENT    274.90  

  124577 8/14/2020 CINTAS CORPORATION                 FIRST AID SUPPLIES                                   115.89  

  124578 8/14/2020 COX COMMUNICATIONS, CORP.     INTERNET & CABLE TV                             469.23  

  124579 8/14/2020 CUMMINS SALES & SERVICE    dba  BUS PARTS & REPAIRS                              12,260.63  

  124580 8/14/2020 NANCY CURTIS                       RETIREE HEALTH REIMBURSEMENT    191.12  

  124581 8/14/2020 FIRST LOAN                         PR RELATED                                                 50.00  

  124582 8/14/2020 SHERRIE FISHER                     RETIREE HEALTH REIMBURSEMENT    320.53  

  124583 8/14/2020 FLEET SERVICES, INC.               BUS PARTS                                                   659.64  

  124584 8/14/2020 FRONTIER CALIFORNIA INC.           TELEPHONE SERVICE                                100.98  

  124585 8/14/2020 GIBBS INTERNATIONAL INC            BUS PARTS                                                   326.15  

  124586 8/14/2020 GILLIG LLC                         BUS PARTS                                                   5,181.63  

  124587 8/14/2020 GOLD COAST TRANSPORT REFRIG BUS A/C MAINTENANCE                           1,208.82  

  124588 8/14/2020 GRAPHICINK                         PRINTING SERVICES                                  213.35  

  124589 8/14/2020 JIM HAGGERTY                       RETIREE HEALTH REIMBURSEMENT    509.12  

  124590 8/14/2020 ALI HABIBI                         RETIREE HEALTH REIMBURSEMENT    285.00  

  124591 8/14/2020 ROBERT HARTMAN, JR.                RETIREE HEALTH REIMBURSEMENT    204.02  

  124592 8/14/2020 HOME IMPROVEMENT CTR.             SHOP/B&G SUPPLIES                                  69.68  

  124593 8/14/2020 UNITED STATES TREASURY - IRS   PAYROLL RELATED                                   250.00  

  124594 8/14/2020 LOUIS JONES                        RETIREE HEALTH REIMBURSEMENT    221.00  

  124595 8/14/2020 KIRKS AUTOMOTIVE, INC              BUS/AUTO PARTS                                       302.22  

  124596 8/14/2020 LABOR ALLIANCE MANAGED TRU UNION DENTAL INSURANCE                   10,110.50  

  124597 8/14/2020 MC CORMIX CORP. (GAS)              FUEL-SERVICE VEHICLES                         1,994.22  

  124598 8/14/2020 MIKE CUEVAS GARDENING SERVI LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE SERVICE 765.00  

  124599 8/14/2020 WILLIAM MORRIS                     PER DIEM                                                      54.00  

  124600 8/14/2020 DAVID MORSE                        TRAVEL PER DIEM                                     60.00  

  124601 8/14/2020 NEWEGG BUSINESS, INC               IT EQUIPMENT & SUPPLIES                      1,478.32  

  124602 8/14/2020 NFI PARTS      DBA                 BUS PARTS                                                   1,405.81  

  124603 8/14/2020 PREVOST CAR (US) INC.              BUS PARTS                                                   149.81  

  124604 8/14/2020 O'REILLY AUTO PARTS    DBA         BUS PARTS                                                   106.25  

  124605 8/14/2020 PACIFIC MATERIALS LABORATOR TESTING & INSPECTIONS                         45.00  

  124606 8/14/2020 CAREY POINDEXTER                   RETIREE HEALTH REIMBURSEMENT    285.00  

15:0024-Aug-20Accounts Payable Check Register



Check # Date Company Description Amount Voids

  124607 8/14/2020 LETICIA RAMIREZ                    PAYROLL RELATED                                   650.00  

  124608 8/14/2020 REPUBLIC ELEVATOR, INC             ELEVATOR MAINTENANCE                     170.00  

  124609 8/14/2020 AL ROMERO SR.                      RETIREE HEALTH REIMBURSEMENT    178.00  

  124610 8/14/2020 JUAN CARLOS RUIZ-GUZMAN         DMV REIMBURSEMENT                            58.00  

  124611 8/14/2020 SANSUM CLINIC                      MEDICAL EXAMS                                        1,910.00  

  124612 8/14/2020 SB COUNTY FEDERAL CREDIT UNI PAYROLL DEDUCTION                              260.00  

  124613 8/14/2020 SILVAS OIL CO., INC.               LUBRICANTS                                                195.75  

  124614 8/14/2020 SANTA BARBARA SIGNS, INC.  DB PRINTING SERVICES                                  98.25  

  124615 8/14/2020 STAPLES CONTRACT & COMMERC OFFICE SUPPLIES                                        52.55  

  124616 8/14/2020 STATE BOARD OF EQUALIZATION PAYROLL RELATED                                   250.00  

  124617 8/14/2020 TANK TEAM INC.                     TANK TESTS                                                 221.96  

  124618 8/14/2020 TEAMSTERS MISC SECURITY TRU UNION MEDICAL INSURANCE                 183,671.00  

  124619 8/14/2020 TEAMSTERS PENSION TRUST          UNION PENSION                                          85,776.46  

  124620 8/14/2020 TEAMSTERS UNION LOCAL NO. 18 UNION DUES                                                9,427.00  

  124621 8/14/2020 TRUMAN ARNOLD COMPANIES (T DIESEL FUEL                                                21,187.69  

  124622 8/14/2020 VALLEY POWER SYSTEMS, INC.      BUS PARTS                                                   712.10  

  124623 8/14/2020 JOHN J. VASQUEZ                    RETIREE HEALTH REIMBURSEMENT    863.15  

  124624 8/14/2020 VERIZON WIRELESS                   WIRELESS PHONES & AIM CELLULAR  2,994.43  

  124625 8/14/2020 WESTERN JANITOR SUPPLY, INC    BUS CLEANING SUPPLIES                         2,365.32  

  124626 8/14/2020 ALEXANDER YOUNG                    RETIREE HEALTH REIMBURSEMENT    204.54  

  124627 8/17/2020 CITY OF SANTA BARBARA              CSR PARKING PERMITS                            857.52  

  124628 8/20/2020 ALIGNMENT TEST                     0.00 V

  124629 8/20/2020 ALIGNMENT TEST                     0.00 V

  124630 8/20/2020 ABC BUS COMPANIES INC              BUS PARTS                                                   100.05  

  124631 8/20/2020 ALLIED ELECTRONICS, INC            BUS PARTS                                                   20.24  

  124632 8/20/2020 AMERICAN MOVING PARTS, LLC    BUS PARTS                                                   1,195.79  

  124633 8/20/2020 AMERICAN SEATING COMPANY     BUS SEATS & PARTS                                  1,865.30  

  124634 8/20/2020 ASBURY ENVIRONMENTAL SERVI WASTE OIL RECYCLER                             160.00  

  124635 8/20/2020 BIG BRAND TIRES, BRANDCO BILL SERVICE VEHICLE MAINTENANCE        1,220.04  

  124636 8/20/2020 BROWN ARMSTRONG ACCOUNTA ANNUAL AUDIT                                          4,500.00  

  124637 8/20/2020 CITY OF CARPINTERIA                CHARGING STATION ELECTRICITY       268.45  

  124638 8/20/2020 CELTIS VENTURES, INC.              MARKETING SERVICES                             3,800.00  

  124639 8/20/2020 CHK AMERICA INC.                   SCHEDULE INFO & SYSTEM MAP           4,930.00  

  124640 8/20/2020 CUMMINS SALES & SERVICE    dba  BUS PARTS & REPAIRS                              2,979.21  

  124641 8/20/2020 DOCUPRODUCTS CORPORATION    COPIER MAINTENANCE/SUPPLIES         223.47  

  124642 8/20/2020 EASY LIFT TRANSPORTATION, INC MONTHLY ADA SUBSIDY                         83,463.33  

  124643 8/20/2020 ECO-T TIRE & RETREADING, LLC    BUS TIRE MOUNTING                                605.00  

  124644 8/20/2020 FRONTIER CALIFORNIA INC.           TELEPHONE SERVICE                                2,003.51  

  124645 8/20/2020 G.L. HYDRAULICS INC.               VENDOR BUS REPAIRS                              591.88  

  124646 8/20/2020 GIBBS INTERNATIONAL INC            BUS PARTS                                                   418.85  

  124647 8/20/2020 GILLIG LLC                         BUS PARTS                                                   1,220.28  

15:0024-Aug-20Accounts Payable Check Register



Check # Date Company Description Amount Voids

  124648 8/20/2020 GOGETTERS, LLC      DBA            COURIER SERVICES                                   225.00  

  124649 8/20/2020 GRAINGER, INC.                     SHOP/B&G SUPPLIES                                  1,607.76  

  124650 8/20/2020 HAYWARD LUMBER                     SHOP SUPPLIES                                           207.30  

  124651 8/20/2020 KIMBALL MIDWEST                    SHOP SUPPLIES                                           220.41  

  124652 8/20/2020 LANSPEED                   DBA     IT SERVICES                                                 1,875.00  

  124653 8/20/2020 LARRY'S 8 DAY AUTO PARTS           FRC SUPPLIES                                              84.58  

  124654 8/20/2020 LMA ARCHITECTS, CORP.              TC CONSTRUCTION OVERSIGHT            42,797.30  

  124655 8/20/2020 MC CORMIX CORP. (OIL)              LUBRICANTS                                                5,669.67  

  124656 8/20/2020 MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY CO.       SHOP/B&G SUPPLIES                                  480.74  

  124657 8/20/2020 MOHAWK MFG. AND SUPPLY CO.   BUS PARTS                                                   168.67  

  124658 8/20/2020 PACIFIC MATERIALS LABORATOR TESTING & INSPECTIONS                         250.00  

  124659 8/20/2020 NOLAN D ROBERTSON                  REIMBURSEMENTS                                    117.20  

  124660 8/20/2020 SANTA BARBARA NEWSPRESS    D PUBLIC NOTICE ADS                                  8,369.74  

  124661 8/20/2020 SANTA BARBARA NEWS PRESS       PUBLIC NOTICES/EMPLOYMENT ADS   73.92  

  124662 8/20/2020 SILVAS OIL CO., INC.               LUBRICANTS                                                194.39  

  124663 8/20/2020 SANTA BARBARA TROPHY               DRIVER NAME PLATES                             11.64  

  124664 8/20/2020 SM TIRE, CORP.                     BUS TIRE MOUNTING                                262.91  

  124665 8/20/2020 SMART OFFICE INTERIORS, INC      OFFICE EQUIPMENT                                   750.00  

  124666 8/20/2020 SO. CAL. EDISON CO.                UTILITIES                                                      5,750.69  

  124667 8/20/2020 SOCALGAS                           UTILITIES                                                      140.91  

  124668 8/20/2020 SPECIALTY TOOL & BOLT, LTD       SHOP SUPPLIES                                           503.31  

  124669 8/20/2020 STAPLES CONTRACT & COMMERC OFFICE SUPPLIES                                        656.68  

  124670 8/20/2020 SB TREE CARE INC                   B&G REPAIRS & SUPPLIES                        750.00  

  124671 8/20/2020 TRUMAN ARNOLD COMPANIES (T DIESEL FUEL                                                21,167.99  

  124672 8/20/2020 VALLEY POWER SYSTEMS, INC.      BUS PARTS                                                   2,438.00  

  124673 8/20/2020 VALLEY POWER SYSTEMS, INC.      BUS PARTS                                                   640.90  

  124674 8/20/2020 WAXIE SANITARY SUPPLY      DBA JANITORIAL SUPPLIES                              1,157.40  

  124675 8/20/2020 WURTH USA WEST INC.                SHOP SUPPLIES                                           241.42  

  124676 8/20/2020 YELLOW (YRC) TRANSPORTATION FREIGHT CHARGES                                    324.20  

1,562,242.46

788.15

$1,561,157.35

Prior Cash Report Voided Checks: 296.96

Current Cash Report Voided Checks:

Grand Total:

15:0024-Aug-20Accounts Payable Check Register



 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS REPORT 

 
MEETING DATE: SEPTEMBER 1, 2020 AGENDA ITEM: #7 

DEPARTMENT: RISK 

TYPE: INFORMATIONAL ITEM 

PREPARED BY: MARY GREGG ____________________ 
Signature 

                                
REVIEWED BY: GENERAL MANAGER ____________________  
                          Signature            
 
SUBJECT: PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AGENCY SAFETY PLAN 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  
Staff recommends the Board receive a presentation update on MTD’s Agency Safety Plan (ASP) in 
compliance with the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Public Transportation Agency Safety Plan 
(PTASP) Rule 49 C.F.R. Part 673.  
 
DISCUSSION:  
Staff has completed a draft Agency Safety Plan (ASP) addressing MTD’s fixed route directly 
operated bus service and SMS processes.  MTD is responsible for ensuring Part 673 
requirements are satisfied when using another entity to provide transit services.  MTD’s contractor 
of its ADA paratransit service is Easy Lift, and Staff are working with Easy Lift management to 
document their SMS processes for reference in MTD’s ASP. The compliance deadline to certify 
the ASP is in place is December 31, 2020. Staff will present a final ASP for Board approval in 
November, 2020. 
 
BACKGROUND:  
In 2012, The FTA’s funding legislation, Moving Ahead for Progress in the 21st Century (MAP-21), 
established a new nationwide safety policy for all transit agencies to manage transit safety. The 
FTA is implementing the new safety policy through their PTASP Rule, referred to as an Agency 
Safety Plan (ASP). MTD has rigorous safety programs already established that meet local, state 
and Federal compliance regulations that will be included in the ASP. 
 
The PTASP Rule requires the agency to manage safety risks through the implementation of a 
Safety Management System (SMS), which is comprised of the data driven processes MTD uses 
to proactively manage risks of our transit system. SMS is a safety culture framework developed 
to reduce safety events through making safety everyone’s responsibility. There are four 
components of SMS: (1) Safety Management Policy, (2) Safety Risk Management, (3) Safety 
Assurance, and (4) Safety Promotion.  
 
ATTACHMENT:   

• 2020 Draft Public Transportation Agency Safety Plan 



Public Transportation Agency Safety Plan  
Error! No text of specified style in document.  

    

0 

 
 

  

2020 PUBLIC 
TRANSPORTATION 

AGENCY SAFETY 
PLAN 

 

 

 
The mission of 
Santa Barbara 
Metropolitan 
Transit District is 
to enhance the 
mobility of South 
Coast residents, 
commuters, and 
visitors by offering 
safe, appealing, 
equitable, 
environmentally 
responsible, and 
fiscally sound 
transit service. 



 

Version 0 - DRAFT 20200826 1 

 

Public Transportation Agency Safety Plan  

Table of Contents 

1.    DEFINITION OF TERMS USED IN THE AGENCY SAFETY PLAN ..................................................... 2 

2.    COMMONLY USED ACRONYMS ......................................................................................................... 3 

3.    PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AGENCY SAFETY PLAN OVERVIEW ................................................. 4 

4.    TRANSIT AGENCY INFORMATION ..................................................................................................... 5 

5.    PLAN DEVELOPMENT, APPROVAL, AND UPDATES ........................................................................ 6 

6.    SAFETY PERFORMANCE TARGETS .................................................................................................. 7 

7.    SAFETY MANAGEMENT POLICY ........................................................................................................ 7 

8.    SAFETY RISK MANAGEMENT ........................................................................................................... 12 

9.    SAFETY ASSURANCE ........................................................................................................................ 15 

10.  SAFETY PROMOTION ........................................................................................................................ 17 

11.  ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ............................................................................................................. 18 
  



 

Version 0 - DRAFT 20200826 2 

1. Definition of Terms Used in the Agency Safety Plan 

Santa Barbara Metropolitan Transit District incorporates all of the Federal Transit Administration’s 
definitions that are in 49 CFR § 673.5 of the Public Transportation Agency Safety Plan regulation. 

• Accident means an Event that involves any of the following: A loss of life; a report of a serious 
injury to a person; a collision of public transportation vehicles; an evacuation for life safety 
reasons. 

• Accountable Executive means a single, identifiable person who has ultimate responsibility for 
carrying out the Agency Safety Plan of a public transportation agency; responsibility for carrying 
out the agency's Transit Asset Management Plan; and control or direction over the human and 
capital resources needed to develop and maintain both the Agency Safety Plan, in accordance 
with 49 U.S.C. § 5329(d), and the Transit Asset Management Plan, in accordance with 49 U.S.C. § 
5326, of said public transportation agency. 

• Agency or transit agency means Santa Barbara Metropolitan Transit District, located at 550 
Olive Street, Santa Barbara, CA 93101, an operator of a public transportation system. 

• Agency Safety Plan means the documented comprehensive Public Transportation Agency Safety 
Plan for a transit agency that is required by 49 U.S.C. 5329 and Part 673. 

• Board of Directors means governing body of Santa Barbara Metropolitan Transit District. 
• Chief Safety Officer means the adequately trained individual who has responsibility for safety and 

reports directly to the transit agency’s Accountable Executive. 
• Event means any Accident, Incident, or Occurrence. 
• Hazard means any real or potential condition that can cause injury, illness, or death; damage to or 

loss of the facilities, equipment, rolling stock, or infrastructure of a public transportation system; or 
damage to the environment. 

• Incident means an Event that involves any of the following: a personal injury that is not a serious 
injury; one or more injuries requiring medical transport; or damage to facilities, equipment, rolling 
stock, or infrastructure that disrupts the operations of the transit agency. 

• Investigation means the process of determining the causal and contributing factors of an 
accident, incident, or hazard, for the purpose of preventing recurrence and mitigating risk. 

• National Public Transportation Safety Plan means the plan to improve the safety of all public 
transportation systems that receive federal financial assistance under 49 U.S.C. Chapter 53. 

• Occurrence means an Event without any personal injury in which any damage to facilities, 
equipment, rolling stock, or infrastructure does not disrupt the operations of a transit agency. 

• Operator of a public transportation system means a provider of public transportation as defined 
under 49 U.S.C. 5302. 

• Part 673 means 49 CFR Part 673.    
• Performance measure means an expression based on a quantifiable indicator of performance or 

condition that is used to establish targets and to assess progress toward meeting the established 
targets. 

• Performance target means a quantifiable level of performance or condition, expressed as a value 
for the measure, to be achieved within a time period required by the FTA. 

• Public Transportation Agency Safety Plan means the documented comprehensive Agency 
Safety Plan for a transit agency that is required by 49 U.S.C. 5329 and Part 673. 

• Risk means the composite of predicted severity and likelihood of the potential effect of a hazard. 
• Risk mitigation means a method or methods to eliminate or reduce the effects of hazards. 



 

Version 0 - DRAFT 20200826 3 

• Safety Assurance means processes within the transit agency's Safety Management System that 
function to ensure the implementation and effectiveness of safety risk mitigation, and to ensure 
that the transit agency meets or exceeds its safety objectives through the collection, analysis, and 
assessment of information. 

• Safety Management Policy means the transit agency's documented commitment to safety, which 
defines the transit agency's safety objectives and the accountabilities and responsibilities of its 
employees in regard to safety. 

• Safety Management System means the formal, top-down, organization-wide approach to 
managing safety risk and assuring the effectiveness of a transit agency's safety risk mitigation. 
SMS is a continuous improvement process that includes systematic procedures, practices, and 
policies for managing risks and hazards. 

• Safety Performance Target means a performance target related to safety management activities. 
• Safety Promotion means a combination of training and communication of safety information to 

support SMS as applied to the transit agency's public transportation system. 
• Safety Risk Assessment means the formal activity whereby the transit agency determines Safety 

Risk Management priorities by establishing the significance or value of its safety risks. 
• Safety Risk Management means a process within the transit agency's ASP for identifying 

hazards and analyzing, assessing, and mitigating safety risk. 
• Serious injury means any injury which: (1) Requires hospitalization for more than 48 hours, 

commencing within seven days from the date when the injury was received; (2) Results in a 
fracture of any bone (except simple fractures of fingers, toes, or noses); (3) Causes severe 
hemorrhages, nerve, muscle, or tendon damage; (4) Involves any internal organ; or (5) Involves 
second- or third-degree burns, or any burns affecting more than five percent of the body surface. 

• State of Good Repair means the condition in which a capital asset is able to operate at a full level 
of performance. 

• Transit Agency means an operator of a public transportation system.  
• Transit Asset Management Plan means the strategic and systematic practice of procuring, 

operating, inspecting, maintaining, rehabilitating, and replacing transit capital assets to manage 
their performance, risks, and costs over their life cycles, for the purpose of providing safe, cost- 
effective, and reliable public transportation, as required by 49 U.S.C. 5326 and 49 CFR Part 625. 

2. Commonly Used Acronyms 

Acronym  Word or Phrase 

ADA American’s with Disabilities Act of 1990 

AE Accountable Executive 

ASP Agency Safety Plan (also referred to as a PTASP in Part 673) 

BOD Board of Directors 

Caltrans California Department of Transportation 

CSO Chief Safety Officer 

CFR Code of Federal Regulations 

DOT Department of Transportation 



 

Version 0 - DRAFT 20200826 4 

ESRP Employee Safety Reporting Program 

FTA Federal Transit Administration 

MPO Metropolitan Planning Organization 

Part 673 49 CFR Part 673 (Public Transportation Agency Safety Plan) 

SBCAG Santa Barbara County Association of Governments 

SBMTD Santa Barbara Metropolitan Transit District 

SGR State of Good Repair 

SMP Safety Management Policy 

SMS Safety Management System 

SPT Safety Performance Target 

SRM Safety Risk Management 

U.S.C. United States Code 

VRM Vehicle Revenue Miles 

VTT Verification of Transit Training 

3. Public Transportation Agency Safety Plan Overview 

Public Transportation Agency Safety Plan  

On July 19, 2018, the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) published the Public Transportation 
Agency Safety Plan (PTASP) Rule. The rule applies to all operators of public transportation systems 
that are recipients and subrecipients of federal financial assistance under the Urbanized Area 
Formula Program (49 U.S.C. § 5307).  The rule requires these transit operators to develop an 
Agency Safety Plan (ASP) that include the processes and procedures to implement Safety 
Management System (SMS).  FTA has adopted the principles and methods of SMS as the basis 
for enhancing the safety of public transportation in the United States. 

• The Rule 49 CFR Part 673 became effective on July 19, 2019.  

• FTA published a Dear Colleague letter on July 19, 2019, to alert the transit industry of the 
July 20, 2020 safety compliance deadline.   

• FTA published a Notice of Enforcement Discretion on April 22, 2020, effectively extending 
the compliance deadline to December 31, 2020 due to the COVID-19 pandemic. 

SBMTD developed the contents of our Agency Safety Plan to meet all requirements specified in 
49 CFR Part 673.  SBMTD’s ASP addresses all applicable requirements and standards as set 
forth in FTA’s Public Transportation Safety Program and the National Public Transportation Safety 
Plan.  

The Agency Safety Plan is based on the four principles or pillars of the Safety Management 
System (SMS).  SMS is defined as the formal, top-down, organization-wide, data-driven approach 
to managing safety risk and assuring the effectiveness of safety mitigations.  It includes 
systematic policies, procedures, and practices for the management of safety risk.   

  



 

Version 0 - DRAFT 20200826 5 

The four principles or pillars of SMS are: (1) Safety Management Policy; (2) Safety Risk 
Management; (3) Safety Assurance; and (4) Safety Promotion.  

SMS is a comprehensive, collaborative approach that brings management and labor together to 
build on the transit industry’s existing safety foundation to control risk better, detect and correct 
safety concerns earlier, share and analyze safety data more effectively, and measure safety 
performance more efficiently.  SBMTD’s SMS focuses on applying resources to risk and is based 
on ensuring that the agency has the organizational infrastructure to support decision-making at all 
levels regarding the assignment of resources. The SMS processes in the ASP are for SBMTD’s 
directly operated fixed route bus service.  

Key components of SBMTD’s SMS include: 

• Strong executive safety leadership; 

• Defined roles and responsibilities; 

• Formal safety accountabilities and communications; 

• Effective policies and procedures; and 

• Active employee involvement 

SBMTD monitors the contractor providing its ADA/Paratransit service to ensure they are following their 
SMS as referenced in Appendix A.  

4. Transit Agency Information 

Transit Agency Name Santa Barbara Metropolitan Transit District 

Transit Agency 
Address 550 Olive Street, Santa Barbara, CA 93101 

Name and Title of 
Accountable 
Executive 

Jerry Estrada, General Manager 

Name of Chief Safety 
Officer  Mary Gregg, Director of Human Resources and Risk 

Mode(s) of Service 
Covered by This Plan Fixed Route Bus  

List All FTA Funding 
Types (e.g., 5307, 
5337, 5339) 

5307, 5339 

Mode(s) of Service 
Provided by the 
Transit Agency  

Directly Operated Fixed Route Bus; Contracted ADA/Paratransit Service 

Does the agency 
provide transit 
services on behalf of 
another transit 
agency or entity? 

Yes 
 

No 
 

Description of 
Arrangement(s) N/A 

Name and Address of 
Transit Agency(ies) 
or Entity(ies) for 
Which Service Is 
Provided 

N/A 



 

Version 0 - DRAFT 20200826 6 

5.  Plan Development, Approval, and Updates 

Name of Person Who 
Drafted This Plan Mary Gregg, Director of Human Resources and Risk / Chief Safety Officer 

Signature by the 
Accountable 
Executive 

Signature of Accountable Executive Date of Signature 

            

Approval by the 
Board of Directors or 
an Equivalent 
Authority 

SBMTD Board of Directors Date of Approval 

Resolution # XXXX       

Relevant Documentation (Title and Location) 

A copy of SBMTD’s Board of Directors Resolution # XXXX, approving the 
Agency Safety Plan, is maintained on file by SBMTD’s Chief Safety Officer.  

Certification of 
Compliance 

Name of Entity That Certified This Plan Date of Certification 

Santa Barbara Metropolitan Transit District       

Relevant Documentation (Title and Location) 

 

 

Agency Safety Plan Version Number and Updates  

Version 
Number 

Section/Pages 
Affected Reason for Change Date Issued 

1 N/A New Document 09/XX/2020 

    

 

Annual Review and Update of the Agency Safety Plan 

This plan will be reviewed and updated by the Chief Safety Officer by September 1, 2021, and 
then by July 20 in perpetuity.  All Agency Safety Plan updates shall be signed by the Accountable 
Executive and approved by SBMTD’s Board of Directors.  

SBMTD updates this ASP when information, processes or activities change within the agency 
and/or when Part 673 undergoes significant changes, or annually, whichever comes sooner.  
Data collected by SBMTD through its Safety Risk Management and Safety Assurance processes 
is shared with the State Department of Transportation, and the local Metropolitan Planning 
Organization.  Both entities will evaluate SBMTD’s safety performance targets (SPTs) to 
determine whether they need to be changed, as well. 

 



 

Version 0 - DRAFT 20200826 7 

6. Safety Performance Targets 

Safety Performance Targets 

Safety Performance Targets (SPTs) are specific numerical targets set by SBMTD based on safety 
performance measures under the National Public Transportation Safety Plan for: (1) Fatalities, (2) Injuries, 
(3) Safety Events, and (4) System Reliability (State of Good Repair). Rates for the safety performance 
targets are calculated by SBMTD per 100,000 vehicle revenue miles (VRM) based on a five-year average 
from 2015-2019 of SBMTD’s reportable data to the National Transit Database (NTD). 

Mode of Transit 
Service 

Fatalities 
(Total) 

Fatalities 
(Rate) 

Injuries 
(Total) 

Injuries 
(Rate) 

Safety 
Events 
(Total) 

Safety 
Events 
(Rate) 

System 
Reliability 

Fixed Route Bus 0.6 0.02 2.4 0.09 3.0 0.12 8,000 

ADA/Paratransit TBD TBD TBD TBD TBD TBD TBD 

 

Safety Performance Target Coordination 

SBMTD’s Accountable Executive shares our ASP, including safety performance targets, with the 
Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) in our service area each year after its formal adoption by the 
Board of Directors. MTD’s Chief Safety Officer also provides a copy of our formally adopted plan to the 
State Department of Transportation. MTD personnel are available to coordinate with both agencies in the 
selection of each agency’s safety performance targets upon request. 

Targets 
Transmitted to 
the State 

State Entity Name Date Targets Transmitted 

California Department of Transportation, 
Division of Rail and Mass Transportation 
(Caltrans) 

      

Targets 
Transmitted to 
the Metropolitan 
Planning 
Organization(s)
  

Metropolitan Planning Organization 
Name Date Targets Transmitted 

Santa Barbara County Association of 
Governments (SBCAG)       

7.  Safety Management Policy 

Safety Management Policy 

The first component of SBMTD’s Safety Management System is Safety Management Policy, which is the 
foundation the agency’s SMS.  It states the agency’s safety objectives and sets forth the policies, 
procedures, and organizational structures necessary to accomplish these safety objectives. 
 



 

Version 0 - DRAFT 20200826 8 

Safety Management Policy Statement 

Safety is Santa Barbara Metropolitan Transit District‘s number one priority. We educate, encourage, 
and endorse a strong culture of safety at every level of the organization. We value the responsibility 
entrusted in us by the communities that we serve.  SBMTD is committed to developing, implementing, 
maintaining, and constantly improving processes to ensure the safety of our customers, employees, 
and the public. The agency’s overall safety objective is to proactively manage safety hazards and 
their associated safety risk to achieve the highest level of safety performance, meeting and exceeding 
established standards for our industry.  

All levels of management, employees and contractors are accountable for the delivery of the highest 
level of safety performance.  Our commitment is to: 

• Communicate the purpose and benefits of the Safety Management System (SMS) to all 
employees, reaffirming that responsibility for making our operations safer for everyone lies 
with all employees; 

• Provide all employees with appropriate safety information and training, to ensure they are 
competent in safety matters, and assigned only tasks commensurate with their duties and skills; 

• Establish an effective Employee Safety Reporting Program (ESRP) that will encourage 
employees to communicate and report any unsafe work conditions, hazards, or at-risk 
behavior to the management team; 

• Support a culture of open reporting of all safety concerns, to ensure that no action will be 
taken against any employee who discloses a safety concern through the ESRP, unless such 
disclosure indicates, beyond any reasonable doubt, an illegal act, gross negligence, or a 
deliberate or willful disregard of regulations or procedures; 

• Identify hazardous and unsafe work conditions, thoroughly analyzing data from the 
ESRP, and then developing procedures to mitigate safety risk to an acceptable level;  

• Establish and measure our safety performance against realistic and data-driven safety 
performance indicators and safety performance targets.  

• Continually improve our safety performance through management processes that ensure 
appropriate safety management action is taken and is effective. 

 
(Signature) 

Jerry Estrada, General Manager and Accountable Executive 
 

Safety Management Policy Communication 

The Safety Management Policy is communicated throughout the agency, to all employees, managers, 
and executives, as well as contractors, and to SBMTD’s Board of Directors.  This is accomplished through 
various processes, such as: 

• New Hire Onboarding – Safety orientation for all new employees regardless of their 
classifications; training about their roles and responsibilities pertaining to PTASP and the 
principles of SMS.  

• Workshops/training sessions – Conducted for executives, department managers, and 
supervisors; Verification of Transit Training for bus operators; toolbox safety meetings.   

• Safety Communication Board – Newsletters and safety information posted in employee work 
locations throughout the agency; email blasts to staff, and/or safety committee meetings. 
 



 

Version 0 - DRAFT 20200826 9 

Authorities, Accountabilities, and Responsibilities 

Accountable 
Executive 

The General Manager serves as Santa Barbara Metropolitan Transit 
District’s Accountable Executive with the following authorities, 
accountabilities, and responsibilities under this plan: 

• Controls and directs human and capital resources, to support asset 
management and capital investments needed to develop and 
maintain SBMTD’s Agency Safety Plan and Safety Management 
System. 

• Ensures safety concerns are considered and addressed in the 
agency’s ongoing budget planning process. 

• Designates an adequately trained Chief Safety Officer who is a 
direct report. 

• Ensures that the agency’s SMS is effectively implemented throughout 
the organization and safety policy is appropriately communicated 
throughout the agency. 

• Ensures action is taken, as necessary, to address substandard 
performance in the agency’s SMS. 

• May delegate specific responsibilities, but responsibility for carrying out 
the ASP and SMS, and ultimate accountability for SBMTD’s safety 
performance, rests with the AE. 

• Maintains responsibility for carrying out the Transit Asset 
Management Plan. 

 

Chief Safety Officer 
or SMS Executive 

The Accountable Executive designated the Director of Human Resources and 
Risk as SBMTD’s Chief Safety Officer. The Chief Safety Officer has the 
following authorities, accountabilities, and responsibilities under this plan: 

• Develops the ASP and SMS policies and procedures. 
• Authority and responsibility for day-to-day implementation and 

operation of the agency’s SMS. 
• Manages the Employee Safety Reporting Program. 
• Chairs the SBMTD Safety Committee and 

o Coordinates the activities of the committee; 
o Establishes and maintains the agency’s Safety Risk 

Register and Safety Event Log; and 
o Maintains and distributes minutes of committee meetings. 

• Briefs the Accountable Executive on SMS progress and status. 
• Identifies substandard performance in SBMTD's SMS and 

develops action plans for approval by the AE. 
• Ensures policies are consistent with the agency’s safety objectives. 
• Provides Safety Risk Management expertise and support for other 

SBMTD personnel who conduct and oversee Safety Assurance 
activities. 

 



 

Version 0 - DRAFT 20200826 10 

Agency Leadership 
and Executive 
Management 

Agency Leadership and Executive Management also have authorities and 
responsibilities for day-to-day SMS implementation and operation of 
SBMTD’s SMS under this plan. These personnel include the Director of 
Finance and Administration, Operations Manager, Fleet and Facilities 
Manager, Planning and Marketing Manager, and Human Resources 
Manager. They have the following authorities, accountabilities, and 
responsibilities under this plan: 

• Oversees day-to-day operations of the SMS and communicates safety 
accountability and responsibility in their departments. 

• Supports implementation of the SMS throughout the organization. 
• Ensures employees in their department are following safety rules and 

regulations in performing their jobs, and their specific roles and 
responsibilities in the implementation of this Agency Safety Plan and 
SMS. 

• Modifies policies in their departments consistent with implementation 
of the SMS, as necessary. 

• Completes training on SMS and the ASP elements. 
• Provides subject matter expertise to support implementation of the 

SMS as requested by the AE or the CSO, including SRM activities, 
investigation of safety events, development of safety risk mitigations, 
and monitoring of mitigation effectiveness. 

• Replaces aging facilities, equipment, and infrastructure. 
• Participates as members of SBMTD’s Safety Committee as assigned. 

 

Key Staff  

The agency Key Staff may include managers, supervisors, specialists, 
analysts, database administrators and other key employees who are 
performing highly technical work and overseeing employees performing 
critical tasks and providing support in the implementation of the ASP and 
SMS principles in various departments throughout the agency. These 
personnel include, but are not limited to, Superintendent of Maintenance, 
Assistant Superintendent of Maintenance, Fleet Maintenance Supervisor, 
Superintendent of Operations, Operations Safety and Training Administrator, 
Risk Administrator. Key Staff responsibilities include: 

• Supports implementation of the SMS throughout the organization. 
• Promotes safety in employee’s respective area of responsibilities and 

compliance with agency rules and procedures and regulatory 
requirements. 

• Ensures employees are complying with the safety reporting program. 
• Ensures safety of passengers, employees and the public. 
• Develops and maintains programs to gather pertinent data elements to 

develop safety performance reports and conduct useful statistical 
analyses to identify trends and system performance targets.  

• Establishes clear lines of safety communication and hold accountability 
for safety performance 

• Maintains aging facilities, equipment, and infrastructure. 
• Assists as subject matter experts in safety risk assessment and safety 

risk mitigation processes.  
 



 

Version 0 - DRAFT 20200826 11 

Employee Safety Reporting Program 

The purpose of an Employee Safety Reporting Program (ESRP) is to establish a system for all 
employees who identify unsafe conditions or hazards in their day-to-day duties to report them to 
department and executive management in good faith without fear of reprisal.   
The ESRP is intended to help the Accountable Executive, Chief Safety Officer, and other executive 
management get important safety information from across the transit agency.  
SBMTD has implemented a process that allows and encourages its employees to report safety 
conditions through verbal reporting to supervisors and management, paper forms such as 
accident/incident reports, safety meetings and toolbox talks, and local union representation.   
Some examples of voluntary information typically reported include: 

• Safety concerns in the operating environment; 

• Policies and procedures that may not be working as intended; 

• Events that managers might not otherwise know about; and 

• Information about why a safety event occurred. 
SBMTD’s Chief Safety Officer or designee reviews reported safety conditions and documents safety 
conditions in the Safety Risk Register.  
The CSO will review and address each employee report, ensuring that hazards and their 
consequences are appropriately identified and resolved through the agency’s Safety Risk 
Management (SRM) process and that reported deficiencies and non-compliance with rules or 
procedures are managed through the agency’s Safety Assurance process. Findings will be published 
following mitigation actions, and presented through meetings throughout the year such as those held 
for Operations Supervisors and VTT for Bus Operators, for example.   
If the reporting employee provided his or her name during the reporting process, the CSO or designee 
follows up directly with the employee when SBMTD determines what action, if necessary, is to be 
taken and after any mitigations are implemented.  

All employees have the obligation to report immediately any unsafe conditions or hazards to their 
immediate supervisor/department manager and may do so without fear of reprisal.  Further, SBMTD 
encourages participation in the ESRP by protecting employees that report safety conditions in good 
faith. However, if the report reveals any of the following, SBMTD may take disciplinary action for: 

• Willful participation in or conduct of an illegal act; 

• Gross negligence, deliberate or willful disregard of regulations or procedures, including 
reporting to work under the influence of controlled substances;  

• Physical assault of a co-worker, passenger, vendor or any member of the public; 

• Theft of agency property; 

• Unreported safety events, unreported collisions, and unreported passenger injuries 
or fatalities;  

• Or violation of agency Code of Conduct and employment policies. 
  

 



 

Version 0 - DRAFT 20200826 12 

8. Safety Risk Management 

Safety Risk Management Process 

 

The second component of SMS is Safety Risk Management, which includes the following activities:  
(1) Safety Hazard identification, (2) Safety Risk Assessment, and (3) Safety Risk Mitigation. SRM is the 
primary method to ensure the safety of our operations, passengers, employees, vehicles, and facilities.   
It is a process whereby hazards and their consequences are identified, assessed for potential safety risk, 
and resolved in a manner acceptable to SBMTD’s leadership. SBMTD’s SRM process allows us to 
carefully examine what could cause harm and determine whether we have taken sufficient precautions to 
minimize the harm, or if further mitigations are necessary. SBMTD’s SRM process applies to all elements 
of our system including our operations and maintenance; facilities and vehicles; and personnel 
recruitment, training, and supervision. In carrying out the SRM process, SBMTD uses the following terms:  

• Event – Any accident, incident, or occurrence. 
• Hazard – Any real or potential condition that can cause injury, illness, or death; damage to or loss 

of the facilities, equipment, rolling stock, or infrastructure belonging to SBMTD; or damage to the 
environment. 

• Risk – Composite of predicted severity and likelihood of the potential effect of a hazard. 
• Risk Mitigation – Method(s) to eliminate or reduce the effects of hazards. 
• Consequence – An effect of a hazard involving injury, illness, death, or damage to SBMTD 

property or the environment. 
 

(1) Safety Hazard Identification 
The safety hazard identification process offers SBMTD the ability to identify hazards and potential 
consequences in the operation and maintenance of our system. Hazards can be identified through a 
variety of sources, including but not limited to: 

• Employee Safety Reporting Program (ESRP); 
• Review of vehicle camera footage and/or property footage; 
• Review of monthly performance data and safety performance targets; 
• Observations from supervisors; 
• Maintenance reports; 
• Comments from customers, passengers, vendors, and third parties; 
• Safety Committee, Drivers, Maintenance, and Staff  Meetings; 
• Results of audits and inspections of vehicles and facilities; 
• Results of training assessments; 
• Investigations into safety events, incidents, and occurrences; and 
• Federal Transit Administration (FTA) and other oversight authorities. 

When a safety hazard has been identified, whatever the source, it is reported to the Chief Safety Officer 
through the procedures established and identified throughout this Agency Safety Plan. The CSO enters the 
information into the Safety Event Log. The CSO will conduct further analyses of hazards to collect 
information and identify additional consequences, to inform which hazards should be prioritized for safety 
risk assessment. In following up on identified hazards, the Chief Safety Officer may: 

• Reach out to the reporting party, if available, to gather all known information about the reported 
hazard; 

• Conduct a walkthrough of the affected area, assessing the possible hazardous condition, 
generating visual documentation, and taking any measurements deemed necessary;  



 

Version 0 - DRAFT 20200826 13 

• Conduct interviews with employees in the area to gather potentially relevant information on the 
reported hazard; 

• Review any documentation associated with the hazard (records, reports, procedures, inspections, 
technical documents, etc.); 

• Contact other departments that may have association with or technical knowledge relevant to the 
reported hazard; 

• Review any past reported hazards of a similar nature; and 
• Evaluate tasks and/or processes associated with the reported hazard. 

 
Any identified hazard that poses a real and immediate threat to life, property, or the environment must 
immediately be brought to the attention of the Accountable Executive and addressed through the Safety 
Risk Management process (with or without the full Safety Committee) for safety risk assessment and 
mitigation. This means that the Chief Safety Officer believes immediate intervention is necessary to 
preserve life, prevent major property destruction, or avoid harm to the environment that would constitute 
a violation of Environmental Protection Agency or California State environmental protection standards. 
Otherwise, the Safety Committee will prioritize hazards for further SRM activity. 
 

(2) Safety Risk Assessment 
SBMTD assesses safety risk associated with identified safety hazards using its safety risk assessment 
process.  Safety risk assessment defines the level or degree of the safety risk by assessing the likelihood 
and severity of the consequences of hazards, including existing mitigations, and prioritizing hazards 
based on safety risk.  

The following matrix, adopted from the TSI Participation Guide – SMS Principles for Transit, 
facilitates the ranking of hazards based on their probability of occurrence and severity of their 
outcome. The measuring goes from A to F with A being frequent or likely to occur frequently, E being 
improbable and F being used when potential hazards are identified and later eliminated. 

 
Safety Risk Probability Levels Table 

Level Description Specific Individual Item Fleet Inventory 

A Frequent Likely to occur often in the life of an 
item. Continuously experienced. 

B Probable Will occur several times in the life of an 
item. Will occur frequently. 

C Occasional Likely to occur sometime in the life of an 
item. Will occur infrequently. 

D Remote Unlikely, but possible to occur in the life 
of an item. 

Unlikely, but can reasonably be 
expected to occur. 

E Improbable 
So unlikely, it can be assumed 
occurrence may not be experienced in 
the life of an item. 

Unlikely to occur, but possible. 

F Eliminated 
Incapable of occurrence. This level is 
used when potential hazards are 
identified and later eliminated. 

Incapable of occurrence. This level is 
used when potential hazards are 
identified and later eliminated. 

The Safety Risk Severity presents a typical safety risk denoting the level of severity of the occurrence of a 
consequence. Hazard severity is a subjective measure of the worst credible mishap resulting from 
personnel error, environmental conditions, design inadequacies and/or procedural efficiencies for system, 
subsystem or component failure or malfunction.  Severity is ranked as shown below: 



 

Version 0 - DRAFT 20200826 14 

Safety Risk Severity Levels Table 
Level Description Mishap Result Criteria 

1 Catastrophic 
Could result in one or more of the following: death, permanent total disability, 
irreversible significant environmental impact, or monetary loss equal to or 
exceeding $10M 

2 Critical 

Could result in one or more of the following: permanent partial disability, injuries or 
occupational illness that may result in hospitalization of at least three personnel, 
reversible significant environmental impact, or monetary loss equal to or exceeding 
$1M but less than $10M 

3 Marginal 
Could result in one or more of the following: injuries or occupational illness resulting 
in one or more lost work day(s), reversible moderate environmental impact, or 
monetary loss equal to or exceeding $100k but less than $1M 

4 Negligible 
Could result in one or more of the following: injuries or occupational illness not 
resulting in lost work day, minimum environmental impact, or monetary loss less 
than $100k. 

 

Safety Risk Probability and Safety Risk Severity are combined into the Safety Risk Index Ranking to 
help prioritize safety risks according to the table below. 

 
Safety Risk Assessment Matrix 

Severity → 
Probability ↓ 

Catastrophic 
1 

Critical 
2 

Marginal 
3 

Negligible 
4 

A-Frequent 1A 2A 3A 4A 
B- Probable 1B 2B 3B 4B 
C-Occasional 1C 2C 3C 4C 
D- Remote 1D 2D 3D 4D 
E- Improbable 1E 2E 3E 4E 
F- Eliminated     

The Chief Safety Officer documents recommendations regarding hazard rating and mitigation options and 
reports this information to the Accountable Executive, including assessment activities outcomes 
documented from Safety Committee meetings. During Safety Committee meetings, the CSO reviews the 
hazard and its consequence(s) and reviews available information distributed to the committee on severity 
and likelihood. The CSO may request support from members of the Safety Committee in obtaining 
additional information to support the safety risk assessment.  All Safety Committee risk assessment 
outcomes will be documented and maintained by the CSO for a period of three years from the date of 
generation. 
 

Safety Risk Index Ranking 

1A, 1B, 1C, 2A, 2B High Unacceptable 
1D, 2C, 3A, 3B Serious Undesirable - with management decision required 
1E, 2D, 2E, 3C, 3D, 3E, 4A, 4B, Medium Acceptable - with review by management 
4C, 4D, 4E Low Acceptable - without review 



 

Version 0 - DRAFT 20200826 15 

(3) Safety Risk Mitigation 
The Chief Safety Officer, assisted by Key Staff subject matter experts, reviews current safety risk 
mitigations and establishes procedures to 1) eliminate; 2) mitigate; 3) accept specific risks. 
Prioritization of safety remediation measures is based on risk analysis and a course of action 
acceptable to SBMTD management.  The safety risk must be mitigated if ranked as Unacceptable 
(High-Red). Those safety risks that have been mitigated, even those mitigated risks shown as 
Acceptable status (Low-Green), undergo regular and consistent monitoring to ensure the mitigation 
strategy is effective. 

Key strategies to minimize the types of risks that potentially exist include: 

• Development and deployment of policies and procedures that address known hazards and risks, 
• Discussion of other actions, strategies and procedures that might help safeguard against 

unknown/unforeseen risks, 
• Training of drivers and other agency staff on all safety policies and procedures, 
• Training of drivers and other agency staff on methodologies for handling emergencies, and 
• Training of drivers and staff on proper and effective use of emergency equipment and 

communication technologies and protocol. 

Safety risk mitigations are tracked and updated in the Safety Event Log by the Chief Safety Officer. 
 

9. Safety Assurance 

Safety Assurance 

The third component of SBMTD’s SMS is Safety Assurance, which ensures the performance and 
effectiveness of safety risk controls established under safety risk management. Through our Safety 
Assurance process, SBMTD: 

• Evaluates our compliance with operations and maintenance procedures to determine 
whether our existing rules and procedures are sufficient to control our safety risk; 

• Assesses the effectiveness of safety risk mitigations to make sure the mitigations are 
appropriate and are implemented as intended; 

• Investigates safety events to identify causal factors; and 
• Analyzes information from safety reporting, including data about safety failures, defects, or 

conditions. 

Safety Performance Monitoring and Measurement 

SBMTD has many processes in place to monitor its entire transit system for compliance with 
operations and maintenance procedures, including: 

• Safety audits, 
• Informal inspections, 
• Regular review of onboard camera footage to assess drivers and specific incidents, 
• Safety surveys, 
• ESRP, 
• Investigation of safety occurrences, 
• Safety review prior to the launch or modification of any facet of service, 



 

Version 0 - DRAFT 20200826 16 

• Daily data gathering and monitoring of data related to the delivery of service, and 
• Regular vehicle inspections and preventative maintenance. 

Results from the above processes are compared against recent performance trends quarterly and 
annually by the Chief Safety Officer to determine where action needs to be taken. The CSO enters any 
identified non-compliant or ineffective activities, including mitigations, back into the SRM process for 
reevaluation by the Safety Committee. 

SBMTD monitors the agency’s operations identifying safety risk mitigations to determine if they have been 
implemented and are effective, appropriate, and working as intended through: 

• Reviewing results from accident, incident, and occurrence investigations; 
• Monitoring employee safety reporting; 
• Reviewing results of internal safety audits and inspections; and 
• Analyzing operational and safety data to identify emerging safety concerns. 

These monitoring mechanisms may include tracking a specific metric on daily, weekly, or monthly logs or 
reports; conducting job performance observations; or other activities. The Chief Safety Officer will 
endeavor to make use of existing SBMTD processes and activities before assigning new information 
collection activities. 

SBMTD’s CSO reviews the performance of individual safety risk mitigations, based on the reporting 
schedule determined for each mitigation, and determines if a specific safety risk mitigation is not 
implemented or performing as intended.  Such reviews may be included as a function of the Safety 
Committee.  If the mitigation is not implemented or performing as intended, a proposed course of action 
to modify the mitigation or take other action to manage the safety risk is determined by the Safety 
Committee, and/or Key Staff subject matter experts, and the CSO will approve or modify this proposed 
course of action and oversee its execution. 

SBMTD also conducts investigations of safety events, to find causal and contributing factors and 
review the existing mitigations in place at the time of the event. These procedures also reflect all traffic 
safety reporting and investigation requirements established by California Department of Motor 
Vehicles, including accident reporting requirements under California Vehicle Code §16002 subdivision 
(a) and subdivision (b).  

The Chief Safety Officer maintains all documentation of SBMTD’s investigation policies, processes, 
forms, checklists, activities, and results, and records of any report filed with FTA and/or DMV.  

In the event that an incident and/or accident has been determined by the CSO to be preventable, 
SBMTD will include processes outlined in a Collective Bargaining Agreement for employees 
represented by a union, in so much as language in the CBA does not conflict with FTA legal 
requirements under PTASP and as so indicated in this Agency Safety Plan.   
The Chief Safety Officer routinely reviews information reported through all internal safety reporting 
programs (e.g., safety data captured in employee incident/accident reports, safety meeting minutes, 
customer complaints, and other safety communication channels). When necessary, the CSO ensures 
that the issues and concerns are investigated or analyzed through the SRM process. 

The Chief Safety Officer also analyzes internal and external reviews, including audits and assessments, 
with findings affecting the agency’s safety performance, compliance with operations and maintenance 
procedures, or the effectiveness of safety risk mitigations. The CSO discusses relevant safety issues and 
concerns with the Accountable Executive and executive management and documents the results of these 
reviews in the Safety Event Log. 
  



 

Version 0 - DRAFT 20200826 17 

10. Safety Promotion 

Safety Promotion 

The fourth component of SBMTD’s SMS is Safety Promotion, which includes a combination of training and 
communication of safety information to employees to enhance the agency’s safety performance. There are 
two parts to Safety Promotion: Competencies and Training; and Safety Communication.  Together, these 
set the tone for the SMS and helps to establish and maintain a robust safety culture. 

Competencies and Training 

SBMTD’s comprehensive safety training program applies to all SBMTD employees directly responsible 
for safety and the agency dedicates resources to conduct safety training, as well as training on SMS 
roles and responsibilities.  

All Employees, understanding of: 
• Safety Performance Targets  
• Fundamental principles of SMS  
• Employee Safety Reporting Program  
• Their individual roles and responsibilities under SMS  

Managers and Supervisors, understanding of: 
• Safety Risk Management  
• Safety Assurance 
• Safety Promotion 
• Their individual roles and responsibilities for SMS  

Executive Management, understanding of: 
• Management commitment to and support of all SMS activities. 

All employees are required to acquire the competencies and knowledge for consistent application of their 
skills as they relate to safety performance objectives. SBMTD dedicates resources to conduct effective 
safety-related skill training, the scope of which, including annual refresher training, is appropriate to each 
employee’s individual safety-related job responsibilities and their role in the SMS. 

Operations safety-related skill training includes the following: 
• New-hire bus operator classroom, behind the wheel, and in-service skill training, 
• Bus operator refresher training, and annual ride-check/in-service evaluation, 
• Bus operator new bus type familiarization training, 
• Bus operator retraining (recertification or return to work), 
• Classroom and on-the-job training for operations supervisors and managers 
• Accident investigation training for operations supervisors and managers. 

Vehicle maintenance safety-related skill training includes the following: 
• New-hire Commercial Drivers’ License classroom and behind the wheel skill training, 
• Ongoing mechanic skill training and mechanic supervisor training, 
• Ongoing training for all maintenance personnel, to include Heat Illness Training, Hazard 

Communications, PPE, High Voltage Safety and Fall Protection, 
• Ongoing hazardous material training for vehicle maintenance technicians and supervisors, and 
• Training provided by vendors. 

 
SBMTD’s Accountable Executive and Agency Leadership and Executive Management team must 
complete FTA’s SMS Awareness online training, and Transportation Safety Institute training as assigned 
by the Chief Safety Officer.  



 

Version 0 - DRAFT 20200826 18 

Safety Communication 

SBMTD’s Chief Safety Officer and the Human Resources and Risk Department coordinate safety 
communication activities for the SMS. SBMTD’s activities focus on the three categories of communication 
activity established in 49 CFR Part 673 (Part 673): 

i. Communicating safety and safety performance information throughout the agency  
ii. Communicating information on hazards and safety risks relevant to employees' roles and 

responsibilities throughout the agency 
iii. Informing employees of safety actions taken in response to reports submitted through the 

ESRP   
Ongoing safety communication is critical and SBMTD ensures communication occurs up, down, and 
across all levels of the organization. Any lessons learned are communicated to all concerned. 
Management commitment to address safety concerns and hazards is communicated on a regular basis. 
 

Management encourages and motivates employees to communicate openly, authentically, and without 
concern for reprisal; ensures employees are aware of SMS principles and understand their safety-related 
roles and responsibilities; conveys safety critical information such as accident data, injuries, and reported 
safety concerns and hazards and their resolutions to employees. SBMTD’s tools to support safety 
communication include:  
 

• Safety bulletins and notices  
• Posters  
• Web based safety training 
• Employee Newsletters  
• Briefings or Toolbox talks  
• Seminars and workshops  
• New-hire onboarding and training  
• Refresher and Return to Work training  
• Safety Committee Meetings 

 

11.  Additional Information 

Supporting Documentation 

SBMTD maintains documentation related to the implementation of its SMS; the programs, policies, and 
procedures used to carry out this ASP; and the results from its SMS processes and activities for three 
years after creation. They will be available to the FTA or other Federal or state oversight entity upon 
request.  They include: 

• Injury and Illness Prevention Plan (IIPP) 

• Emergency Response Plan 

• Driver Training Manual 2020 

• SBMTD Training Manual Gillig Transit Buses  

• SBMTD Training Manual Articulated Transit Buses  



 

Version 0 - DRAFT 20200826 19 

• SBMTD Training Manual BYD Transit Buses 

• Employee Handbooks – Staff  

• Employee Manual - Represented 

• Operators Manual 

• Maintenance Manual 

• Code of Conduct Policies 

• SBMTD Drug & Alcohol Testing Policy 

• Drug Free Workplace Policy 

• Policy Against Sexual Harassment  
 
 



 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS REPORT 

 
MEETING DATE: SEPTEMBER 1, 2020 AGENDA ITEM: #8 

DEPARTMENT: FINANCE 

TYPE: ACTION ITEM 

PREPARED BY: BRAD DAVIS ____________________ 
                     Signature            
 
REVIEWED BY: GENERAL MANAGER ____________________  
                          Signature            
 
SUBJECT: DRIVER BARRIER CONTRACT AWARD RECOMMENDATION 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
As an emergency health and safety measure due to the COVID-19 pandemic, staff recommends 
that the Board award a contract to Complete Coach Works in the amount of $666,213.67 for the 
acquisition, fabrication and installation of driver barriers for District’s Gillig and Nova bus fleets. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
Project Description – The Maintenance Department, working with the Operations and Risk 
Departments, have researched driver barrier solutions the past two months and concluded that 
the Vapor vShield driver barrier, offered by Complete Coach Works, best suits the District’s needs. 
Critical is that the product complies with federal and state motor vehicle safety standards. 
 
Non-Competitive Procurement – A Non-Competitive Solicitation Justification has been prepared 
for this procurement, as required for such sole source purchases. Essentially, the justification is 
based on the public exigency for implementing health and safety measures for MTD drivers and 
passengers due to the COVID-19 pandemic. Additionally, the project is for personal protective 
equipment (PPE), which is preauthorized for sole source acquisition under the CARES Act. 
 
Price Analysis – The price analysis is based on bid information from Sunline Transit and the 
Antelope Valley Transit Authority for similar barrier systems. The pre-sales tax results are 
tabulated below. The analysis indicates that MTD will pay 6 percent more than the average of 
these quotes. As these quotes are several months old and the demand for driver barrier systems 
has increased substantially since then, the price variation is not considered disproportionate. 

 



 BOARD OF DIRECTORS REPORT 

2 

Project Funding – The project cost is eligible for federal CARES Act funding. Staff is reviewing 
the eligibility of the project for FEMA funding as well, which was not previously reported as an 
expected expenditure. The utilization of FEMA funding would better leverage overall federal 
funding for the COVID-19 pandemic. 
 



1  

To:   MTD Board of Directors  
From:  Jerry Estrada, General Manager  
Date:   August 27, 2020 
Subject:  General Manager’s Report 
 

 
 
The graph above provides an illustration of the average weekday ridership, by month, for 
MTD throughout the pandemic.  MTD has seen a steady return of its general ridership 
each month rising from 4,300 daily rides to nearly 7,000 on average.  The current ridership 
level is manageable from a workforce perspective under the current circumstances but 
the maximum passenger occupancy level has resulted in some denial of service.  As 
discussed previously, the decision by local educational institutions to focus primarily on 
remote learning is providing MTD with time to hire and train additional bus operators.   
 
A big milestone was reached this past week as our customer service representatives and 
supervisors are now officially working from the renovated Transit Center.  The building 
will remain closed to the public due to the pandemic until MTD reinstates fare collection.  
However, the outside of the building and circle will be opened to the public within the next 
few weeks as we close a few of the supplemental bus stops that were permitted by the 
City of Santa Barbara during construction.  The City has approved the continued use of 
some of the temporary bus stops for an additional six months due to the pandemic.   



2  

 

Ten Chevy Bolts are now in operation as a part of MTD’s operator relief vehicle fleet.  The 
charging infrastructure was acquired and installed with grants awarded by the SCE 
Charge Ready Light-Duty program and the Santa Barbara Air Pollution Control District. 
 
Staff has been working closely with SCE Heavy-Duty Charging Infrastructure 
representatives to prepare a grant application to SCE to fund infrastructure improvements 
under the main Terminal 1 canopy to support the charging of up to 14 battery electric 
buses.  Upon completion, the project will double the charging infrastructure for MTD bus 
fleet.  Staff anticipates bringing the grant application to the Board at our next regularly 
scheduled meeting. 


	20200901 Item #1 Agenda
	20200901 Item #4 Draft Minutes from August 4, 2020
	20200901 Item #5 Cash Report
	20200901 Item #7 Staff Report-PTASP Agency Safety Plan Update Presentation
	20200901 Item #7-2 Attachment-SBMTD PTASP Version 0 Draft_20200826
	Public Transportation Agency Safety Plan
	Table of Contents
	1. Definition of Terms Used in the Agency Safety Plan
	2. Commonly Used Acronyms
	3. Public Transportation Agency Safety Plan Overview
	4. Transit Agency Information
	5.  Plan Development, Approval, and Updates
	Agency Safety Plan Version Number and Updates 
	6. Safety Performance Targets
	7.  Safety Management Policy
	8. Safety Risk Management
	9. Safety Assurance
	10. Safety Promotion
	11.  Additional Information

	20200901 Item #8 Staff Report-Driver Barriers Conract Award Recommendation
	20200901 Item #9 GM Report

